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Canon’s Court
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Web Site: http://www.lukfook.com.hk
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Both the English and Chinese versions of this Annual Report can be
accessed through the internet at: http://www.lukfook.com.hk
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

AT AR

Wong Wai Sheung B3 e
hief Executive 17, '

It is my pleasure to present to you the 2007 annual report of Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31st
March 2007.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results

For the year ended 31st March 2007, the Group recorded a turnover

of approximately HK$2,845,147,000, representing a 34% increase as
compared to approximately HK$2,126,297,000 in 2006. Turnover in the
retail and wholesale sectors comprised 65% and 35% respectively. The
increase in the retail turnover was mainly due to the strong growth in the
Hong Kong economy and rising income of consumers, sales of gold
products stimulated by the traditional good-for-marriage year and the
satisfactory growth in sales performance during the Golden Weeks in
May and October 2006. Besides, turnover in the wholesale sector
increased by approximately 43% due to the substantial increase in the
quantity of gold jewellery items purchased by the Group from retail
customers and reselling to gold merchants in bulk quantities, as a result
of drastic surges in gold prices during the year. Profit attributable to
shareholders climbed by 107% to approximately HK$198,059,000
(2006: HK$95,695,000). Basic earnings per share was HK40.3 cents
(2006: HK19.7 cents).
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Dividend

The Directors proposed a final dividend of HK11 cents per share (2006:
HKT7 cents per share) for the year ended 31st March 2007. In addition to
the interim dividend of HK7 cents per share already paid, the dividend
for the full year amounted to a total of HK18 cents per share (2006:
HK10 cents per share). The proposed dividend will be paid on 14th
September 2007 following the approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Overview

The financial year 2006/07 was a fruitful year for the Group. The step-up
in the overall performance was mainly attributable to the substantial
increase in retail and wholesale volume. During the year, the buoyant
stock markets of Hong Kong and the PRC have increased the income of
consumers. The growth in household income and consumer spending
boosted the demand for luxury products such as jewellery. Hence, the
prosperous economy of Hong Kong and the fast growing PRC market
offered robust growth momentum to the retail market of Hong Kong as
well as the sales of Luk Fook.

Meanwhile, the rising tourist arrivals in Hong Kong also led to a rapid
increase in consumer expenditure. According to the figures from the
Hong Kong Tourism Board (“HKTB”), the overall tourist arrivals rose
by 8.1% from 2005 to approximately 25 million in 2006. The number of
PRC tourists, which accounted for more than half of total arrivals,
reached 13.5 million in 2006, expanding at a rate of 8.4% from a year

ago.
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Figures from the HKTB also showed that the total expenditure
associated to inbound tourism recorded an increase of 12.7% to
HK$119.43 billion in 2006, exceeding the original forecast by more than
HK$4.7 billion as compared to 2005. Through the further relaxation of
the Individual Travel Scheme, more PRC consumers are allowed to
travel to Hong Kong, aided by the appreciation of Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars, Hong Kong’s retail sector and our business were
greatly benefited.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Hong Kong Market

As at 31st March 2007, the Group operates 24 retail outlets under the
brand name of “Luk Fook” in Hong Kong. The Group has also
established a stylish and trendy product line, “Ice g.”, to cater the
younger customers’ tastes. Apart from the “Ice g.” counters in “Luk
Fook” jewellery shops, the Group currently operates 1 “Ice g.” shop
in Sheung Shui.

During the year under review, the Group has opened 2 new Luk Fook
shops in Mongkok and Shatin in August and December 2006
respectively.

Since September 2005, the Group has started to renovate the Luk
Fook shops in Hong Kong. Up till the end of 2006, we have already
refurbished most of the shops. The new shop image has been well
received by customers and the renovation project is expected to be
completed by March 2008.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
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In an effort to sustain our integrity as a reputable Hong Kong
jeweler, the Group participated in the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme
organized by the Intellectual Property Department with an aim to
enhance purchasing confidence among consumers. With Luk Fook’s
expertise in “Fei Cui” (Jadeite), the Group was also identified as an

approved member of “Natural Fei Cui Quality Mark” Scheme.

PRC Market

The Group operates its PRC retail business mainly through brand
licensing services. Adopting licensing business in the PRC allows us
to diversify operating risks and minimize the costs for setting up
outlets in the vast mainland regions where different norms and rules

might be applied on jewellery operators.

During the year under review, the Group continued to fortify its
licensing penetration into the PRC market while spotting out
favorable locations to establish self-operated shops. As at 31st March
2007, we have over 270 licensee shops in the PRC, spreading across
as many as 29 provinces and 113 cities. Footprints of Luk Fook are
found in big cities such as Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou.
We have also enlarged our parameters to more interior areas

including Inner Mongolia, Lanzhou, Urumchi, Xinjiang, etc.
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During the year, the Group established 3 self-operated shops in

Beijing in line with our strategy to expand in the PRC market.

Macau Market

With the thriving Macau economy, significant foreign investments
flowed into Macau, boosting the gaming, tourism, property and retail
markets. Many infrastructure projects such as hotels, resorts, real
estates and large scale shopping arcades are under construction.
Fuelled by the growing number of visitors to Macau and the
increasing consumption of visitors, the retail market in Macau has
been flourished. The Group currently has 2 shops located at the main

streets of Macau, which are hot spots for tourists and residents.

Overseas Market

In line with our corporate goal of “Brand of Hong Kong Sparkling
the World”, extending our geographical reach in the global markets
remained our focus during the year. There are currently 3 retail
outlets in Canada under the brand name of Luk Fook, of which

2 shops were switched to be operated under licensing mode in 2006.
Subsequent to the Group’s successful move into the Canadian
market, the Group further tapped into the North American market in
June 2006 to launch a new brand “Luvina Jewelers” in the United

States, signifying the Group’s first step into a new overseas market.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s remarkable financial performance has proven the financial
year of 2006/07 a year of success. As we always believe that there are
huge potentials for long-term growth in the PRC market, we will
penetrate unremittingly into the PRC market while consolidating our

existing markets and tapping into new markets.

‘With the vast business opportunities in the PRC, we will continue to
select carefully suitable licensing partners for setting up retail outlets and
ensure that they offer the best products, designs and services to
customers. We will continue to impose stringent quality control on the
products sold in our licensee shops and provide technical support and

consultancy services to all of the licensed jewelers in the PRC.
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On the other hand, the Group has also been watching closely the Macau
market and is set to open another Luk Fook branch in Macau’s Venetian
Macao-Resort Hotel, which has the world’s largest casino. The Group
remains confident that the new shop will grasp the business opportunities
arisen from the operation of the hotel in mid 2007 and achieve

satisfactory growth to our sales performance in Macau.

In view of the substantial growth potentials in the overseas market, the
Group is planning to tap into new markets, such as Taiwan, Malaysia,
and Las Vegas, in an aim to create new growth drivers to our global retail
operation and further realize Luk Fook’s long-term goal to become a

worldwide brand.

Capitalizing on our trusted brand image, we truly believe that our
diversified product portfolio, superior quality and designs as well as our
earnest customer services are the main factors that enabled us to stay
competitive amid stiff competition in the jewellery market in Hong

Kong.

Looking ahead, to maintain a sound growth momentum, we will
endeavor to strengthen the Luk Fook brand through active participation
in product design competitions to maintain our competitiveness in the

market.

‘We will step up our efforts to widen our sales network and search for
new markets. With a myriad of key factors in Luk Fook, we are
convinced that our healthy growth prospect will give our customers great
confidence to shop at Luk Fook and allow us to remain a popular choice

among customers in the coming years.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank my staff, shareholders,
customers and business partners for their relentless efforts and dedication
to the Group. I also wish to extend my gratitude to our customers for
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By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 24th July 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATION REVIEW
Products
During the year under review, the Group introduced a wide array of

products to cater to the diversified tastes of customers as follows:

¢ “Jewellery Temptation Diamond” Collection Series were launched
during the 5¢1 Golden Week and 10¢1 Golden Week

¢ Adorable products such as “Pig’s Family” are designed to match

up with the Year of Pig
e “21in Love” Collection and “Hearts in 1 Collection are specially
designed for Valentine’s Day. They are products that often create

romantic feelings to lovers

e “Wedding Series” especially designed to match up with the

favourable marriage year
¢ Proudly South African Diamond Jewellery “Parfait” Collection

e “Victoria” Collection which is made up of precious stones
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Mr. Danny Wong, Operations Manager, received
“2006 Superbrands” Award

T AT HE S A e [ 2006 A i ] 4
H

—

‘e J’

| b 1

1

1 Mr. Bankee Kwan, the Chairman of Hong
Kong Retail Management Association,
presented the “2006 Hong Kong Awards
for Industries: Customer Service Award”
to Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, Chief Executive
of the Group
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Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, Chief Executive, was given “2006 Hong Kong Top Service
Brand Award” by Mr. Joseph Wong, the former Secretary for Commerce, Industry and
Technology Bureau
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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¢ “Shine Collection II”” based on the concept of “Jiang” from 2005
Platinum Guild International Jewellery Masterpiece

e “Blessing Collection” for Christmas

Sales Network

As at July 2007, the Group has 33 wholly owned retail outlets under
the brand name of Luk Fook and 1 outlet under the brand name of
Ice g. in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and Canada. The Group also
operates a retail outlet “Luvina Jewelers” in the United States which
is located in San Jose of California. In August and December of
2006, the Group set up 2 new Luk Fook branches in Mongkok and

Shatin to cope with the growing demand in the 2 districts.

In line with our growth strategies to expand in the PRC market, the
Group also established 3 self-operated shops in some of the busiest
shopping centres in Beijing to grasp the enormous business
opportunities brought by the upcoming Beijing Olympic Games to be
held in 2008. The new shops further enlarged Luk Fook’s self-
operated retail network in the PRC. As compared to the same period
of last year, we have aggressively established about 90 licensee
shops in the PRC throughout the year. The total number of the

Group’s licensee shops in the PRC had increased to over 270 as at
March 2007.
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CIUNERRESS  Baia CUNEER SIS B i CUNEER SIS B ai
The 8th Hong Kong Jewellery Design The 8th Hong Kong Jewellery Design The 8th Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition Competition Competition

BEIH Award: HESLAE Merit Award BEELHE Merit Award K& "Best of Show" Award

415 Category:  H AR Other Categories HIR Earrings

YE i 278 Title: 7K 19 15 Power of Flowing Water K # Chromatic Night & Just Begin

Marketing and Promotion
Marketing and promotion is an effective tool to boost sales and

achieve loyalty among customers and thereby enhancing business.

To further strengthen Luk Fook’s corporate brand image and bring
additional value to the brand, we actively participated in a wide
spectrum of activities in an attempt to further consolidate our brand

positioning in the market.

Marketing and promotion expenditures represented approximately
1% of the turnover. Our branding strategy is designed to increase
recognition, generate consumer traffic, acquire customers, build a

loyal customer base and promote repeat purchases.
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Our marketing and advertising campaigns are on a massive scale,
They included ATL and BTL initiatives, which primarily comprised
TV, prints, outdoors and targeted website advertising, affiliate
programs, direct online marketing, and public relations and events

featuring celebrities included:
* Sponsored the Diamond Crown and jewellery pieces for the
winners of “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for the 9th consecutive

years

¢ Being the sole sponsor for the winner’s jewellery pieces in “Miss
Asia Pageant 2006”

* Sponsored the jewellery pieces for the winners in “City Beauties

Pageant 2006” in Guangzhou

¢ Sponsored the “Miss Chinese Pageant” in Vancouver and Toronto

for several years
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* Participated in numerous nationwide jewellery exhibitions in
Chengdu, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Hong Kong, including
“HK Brands and Products Expo, Chengdu”, “Guangzhou
International Jewellery Fair”, “The 7th Shenzhen International
Jewellery Fair”, “HK Jewellery, Clock and Watch Fair” and
“The 41th HK Brands and Products Expo”, etc.

* Being major advertising spender and prize sponsor in renowned

television channels in Hong Kong and China

¢ The enormous success of our DTC Forevermark, World Gold
Council and Perles De Tahiti campaign, and we made great
progress striking the delicate balance between Luk Fook and
fine jewellery as a place of romance and a place for self

purchase

¢ Notable success included platinum and diamond “Shine”
collection cooperated with the Platinum Guild International and

the extension of the diamond wedding ring collection

¢  We introduced a wide range of new designs and collections at
major festivals including Mother’s Day, Valentine’s Day,
Christmas, National Day and Lunar New Year, creating
excitement and broadening the appeal of our merchandise

assortment

Brand Management
A reputable brand helps bolster customers’ purchasing confidence.
Thus, we view brand building exercise as one of our main strategic

focuses to enhance the Group’s sales performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year, the Group obtained a number of awards as regards
the Group’s branding, for example, “The Best Brand Enterprises
Award 2007 (Greater China)” organized by the Hong Kong
Productivity Council, the “Superbrands 2006/07” Award organized
by an independent arbiter of branding that operates in over 50
countries and regions worldwide, “My Favourite Top Ten Brands
Hong Kong” in “The 4th Hong Kong and Macau Merchants of
Integrity Award” organized by Guangzhou Daily and co-organized by
Ming Pao, etc. The Group was also awarded the “Caring Company
2006/07” logo from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service as
well, in recognition of its keen participation and commitment in

facilitating corporate citizenship and supporting community events.

On top of the above, the Group was also ranked one of the top 10
Retailers (Other Retailers) in the 3rd Retail Asia Pacific Top 500
Awards (2006) among 14 economies by “Retail Asia”, a renowned

retail business magazine in Singapore.

We see every award as a vital recognition to the Group’s endeavor to
strengthen its brand. All the awards illustrated Luk Fook’s committed
efforts in the pursuit of brand excellence and verified Luk Fook’s
achievement in establishing an outstanding and unique brand image

with a well-developed brand management system.

Production

In order to attain cost effectiveness and production efficiency, the
Group produces gold ornaments and gem-set jewellery in the PRC as
well as Hong Kong. Other than the sizable processing house in Hong
Kong, the Group has invested approximately HK$100,000,000 to
establish a large manufacturing plant in Panyu, PRC, with a total
floor area of over 350,000 square feet. The production capacity can
be increased to 3 times of the old factory with the full operation of

the new plant.

Portal Operation

The Group’s jewellery portal “www.jewellworld.com” or
“www.jw28.com” is an electronic gateway for the global jewellery
industry. It not only serves as a business-to-business trading platform
among jewellery manufacturers, wholesalers and retailers worldwide,
but also an additional promotion and distribution channel for the
Group. The Group believes that online shopping possesses huge

business potentials and will become more popular.
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ACHIEVEMENTS

Design

The Group is well-known for its stylish designs of jewellery
products. Every year, the Group’s designers are appointed to
different countries to attend exhibitions in an aim to get inspirations
around the globe and nurture creative designs. During the year, the
Group gained various awards from jewellery design competitions
including International Jewelry Design Innovation Competition
2006, the 8th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition and the 6th

International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition.

Quality Assurance

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest levels of product
quality. To ensure the best quality of products, the Group set up its
wholly owned subsidiary gems laboratory, China Gems Laboratory
Limited, in 1996. Its scope of services includes authentication,
grading of diamonds, and authentication of jades and colored
gemstones and quality assessment of jewellery. The Laboratory was
operated by dozens of certified gemologists who specialize in the
authentication of gemstones and jade. Every year, the Laboratory
tests for over 100,000 pieces of jewellery and gemstones on average.
With the ISO 17025 qualification accredited by the Hong Kong
Accreditation Service, the Laboratory also successfully met the
principles of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Management Systems —
Requirements, demonstrating the professional quality assurance
system of the Group. China Gems Laboratory is the sole subsidiary

laboratory of local jewellery retailer obtaining this qualification.

Customer Service

Excellent customer service is prominent for maintaining our
competitiveness in the market. To foster excellent customer service,
the Group is always devoted to continuous enhancement of our

services.

During the year under review, the Group won the “2006 Hong Kong
Top Brand Award” and “2006 Hong Kong Top Service Brand
Award”. Luk Fook was also the only jewellery brand that gained the
“2006 Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Customer Service Award”
from the Hong Kong Retail Management Association. These awards,
once again, confirmed the Group’s successful customer-focused
strategies to win the trust and recognition from customers and the

industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s core business is gold and jewellery retailing. As at
31st March 2007, the Group’s cash on hand reached approximately
HK$175 million (2006: HK$109 million). The Group’s
debt-to-equity ratio at the year-end, being the proportion of total
debts of approximately HK$257 million (2006: HK$171 million)
against total shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$850 million
(2006: HK$715 million), was 30.2% (2006: 23.9%).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of approximately HK$28 million (2006: HK$34
million), including the costs of leasehold improvement, furniture,

fixture and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st March 2007, the Group had total capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$7 million (2006: HK$9 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31st
March 2007 and 31st March 2006.

Employment, Training, Development and
Recruitment Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March 2007, the number of employees of the Group was
approximately 2,124 (2006: 1,726). Remuneration policies are
reviewed and approved by management on a regular basis.
Remuneration packages are structured to take into account the
comparable level of the market. Bonus and other merit payments are
linked to success of the Group and performance of individual
employee. The policy is to encourage employees to optimize

business performance by providing them with financial incentives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
For the year ended 31st March 2007, the Company had properly

applied the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices contained in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) included in the

Rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as follows:

A.
Al

A2

A3

A4

Directors

The Company is supervised by a Board of Directors who
assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and strategising the
Company’s affairs. They make decisions objectively in the

interests of the Company.

An independent non-executive director acts as the Board
Chairman while an executive director acts as the Chief
Executive. There is a clear division of responsibilities for the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business to ensure a balance of power and

authority.

The Board comprises 4 executive directors, 5 non-executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors. They
include persons with a wealth of practical experiences in the
jewellery industry, accountancy profession, legal profession,
general trading and the securities industry. It has a balance of
skills and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The directors’ respective roles and

biographies are set out on pages 41 to 48.

All directors except the Chairman are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
Deviation from the Code is explained in note (a) set out

below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)
A. Directors (Continued) A.
A.5  Every director is continuously-reminded of the requirement A5

A.6

B.1

to keep abreast of his responsibility as a director of the
Company, with reference to the Listing Rules and the
Company Laws inclusive, and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company. Every
independent non-executive director also confirms annually
his independence status to the Company pursuant to the

Listing Rules.

Directors are provided with appropriate information to enable ~ A.6
them to make an informed decision and to discharge their

duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior B.
Management
Information relating to the Company’s directors’ B.1

remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters
are disclosed in the Company’s annual report. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for setting policy on
the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management and for fixing the remuneration packages. The
level of remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain the
directors needed to run the Company successfully. No

director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Accountability and Audit C.
The directors are responsible for preparing the financial C.1
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group

as at the financial period end and of the result and cash flows

of the Group for the year. In the Company’s interim and

annual reports which are issued within the time limits

stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board presents a

balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the

Company’s performance, position and prospects. The

published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

C. Accountability and Audit (Continued)

C.2  The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’
interest and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee,
with the assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system. The Head of the Internal Audit Team directly reports
to the Audit Committee.

C.3  The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines
for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit
Committee established by the Company pursuant to the

Listing Rules has clear terms of reference.

D. Delegation by the Board

D.1  The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf

of the Company.

D.2  The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were
formed with specific written terms of reference that deal
clearly with the committees’ authority and duties. Such terms
of reference are made available to the public. Deviation from
the Code during the year is explained in note (b) set out

below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)
E. Communication with Shareholders E.
E.1 The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders E.1

E.2

and in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and invites their participation in certain
marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the

Company’s business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for E.2
voting by poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures
compliance with the requirements about voting by poll

contained in the Listing Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors is aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not for
any part of the year ended 31st March 2007, in compliance
with the Code except for the following deviations from

certain Code Provisions:
Note (a) Code Provision A.4.2
Code: All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a

specific term, should be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

Deviation: In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy is
subject to election by shareholders at the next
annual general meeting after their appointment.
Moreover, one-third of the directors shall retire
from office by rotation save any director holding

office as Chairman or Managing Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)
Remedy: A special resolution was proposed at the annual
general meeting held on 24th August 2006 to
amend the Company’s Bye-laws in order that
one-third of all the directors shall retire from
office by rotation, and that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy is subject to election by
shareholders at the next general meeting after

their appointment.
Note (b) Code Provisions B.1.4 & C.3.4
Code: The Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee should make available their terms of

reference, explaining their role and the authority

delegated to them by the Board.

Deviation: During the period ended 30th September 2006,
such terms of reference were not available to the
public.

Remedy: At present, such terms of reference are displayed

in the Company’s official website at

www.lukfook.com.hk and are available to the

public.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopts the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, it is
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’

securities transactions in relation to the year ended 31st March 2007.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31st March 2007, the Company’s board of
directors comprised 4 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and
3 independent non-executive directors. Individual directors’ attendance

at board meetings during the year were as follows:

W

FARZE20074E3 H 31 H LN AN Bl gk Y
ZHATESR AZFITE R R =B EHATE
24 A A 7 {1 B 2 R e R I A
T

Attendance
Total number of Board meetings: 9 A B A AR AR L 9k &
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive) AR (TR 8/9 89%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HH A e 8/9 89%
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul ARRAR ST 9/9 100%
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum BIEH AR 7/9 78%
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung B TSGR 8/9 89%
Mr. CHAN Wai Bt e 8/9 89%
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan A S 8/9 89%
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline e ¥ /M 0/9 0%
Mr. HUI King Wai HEHE B A 7/9 78%
Independent Non-executive Directors WL AT EF
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo Lo Wi 6/9 67%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung AR A e 7/9 78%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman) B HER A (FR) 8/9 89%
Average iy 72%

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the
Company within a framework of prudent and effective controls
which enables risk to he assessed and managed. The Board controls
the business but delegate day-to-day responsibility to the executive
management. The Board sets the Company’s strategic aims, values
and standards and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met. In the interests of the Company, a
number of matters are reserved by the Board. Certain matters are the
subject of recommendations by the Audit Committee or
Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary, referring to the
list of reserved matters for the Board, assists the Chairman in
establishing the agenda of Board meetings. Each director may also
request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board/

Committee meetings are open for inspection by the directors.

ERHG 2 WE MR A EEAR R A6 REFRA
R A SEZEAE Al e A B\ o B o B ETS
T H 5 SEH A I 52 A T P B T - S S
FIAS A )2 SR R M (B RRE > TR I B IR
B JEATH AR B HANBE A 2 BT - HERA AN R 2
Mgk A2 HF I E R TR GIE AT HEH
FZ B GEHME B R ftdk A RS
IR E M s D SR IH S R AR T B T T
T AR o 4% T T T R WRAR A
HHEH G TG E k] AR
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, an independent non-executive director,
acts as Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an
executive director, acts as the Chief Executive. Their roles are
segregated and therefore are not exercised by the same individual.
The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board. The Chief Executive is delegated with the authority and
responsible for running the Company’s business, implementing the

Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for two years, and the

existing appointments last until 31st March 2008.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Code, the Board on 7th April 2005
established a Remuneration Committee comprising 3 independent
non-executive directors and 2 executive directors. The remuneration
commiittee is to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management; to determine the specific remuneration
packages; to review and approve performance-based remuneration; to
review and approve the compensation payable in connection with any
loss or termination of office or appointment of directors and senior
management; to oversee any major changes in employee benefits
structures throughout the Company or the Group; and to review the
ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Individual committee members’ attendance at Remuneration

Committee meetings during the year were as follows:

e gt )
1 2% B 1 B4 TR N 2 B e 2
o

Attendance
Total number of Remuneration Committee meetings: 2 AR & Ak 2% HiY xS
Executive Directors HITESF
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung HARH A 2/2 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen A A e 212 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors W HATHEE
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo R et 2/2 100%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung (Committee Chairman) R (R B ) 2/2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond BRI 2/2 100%
Average iy 100%

In July and December 2006, the Remuneration Committee held 2
meetings to review the policies for determining annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2007, to approve the payment of the
discretionary year end bonus for 2006, to consider the feasibility of
setting up an incentive bonus scheme for all non-sales employees
working at the Head Office, to review the enhanced scheme for
granting employees’ annual leave, and to approve the outsourcing of

a group medical plan for all employees up to the supervisor level.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is directly responsible for the nomination procedures,
process and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. No nomination of directors was processed during the
year ended 31st March 2007.

200647 H K12 7 - HiZE B & 1 BIm K & i idist
B> DA RT 2007 J8 47 2 47 18 37 4 i g~ HL e S A+F
200644 LM AL AT ~ 2 18 B A0 S B A JF B 5
1R B T S B IEAL 513 2 AT 470 AR AR B 4F
Bz s wt > L Rt b A SRR R BT A B A A
Bk LA SO R B a2 AR 4 B R

M L TR I A Bk 1 63 78 2 7 2PN & s O B
HEMEEL6

HHRH

HHG AT IR AT T A »
R R M BT S N - 200743 31 A IR BE
AL » M AT AT ] 3 S 4R 2 PR T o
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified

Public Accountants, are as follows:

B S v <
B PI BLT A SR B TS B (B3
R Skt B e B 2 B 5T F

2007 2006

HK$°000 HK$°000

T-Wt T T

Audit services FHET IR 2,846 2,666
Non-audit services FE R RS 88 350
Total st 2,934 3,016

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial

reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice applicable before 1st
January 2005, the Board established an Audit Committee on 1st
February 1999, comprising 3 independent non-executive directors, in
order to monitor the accounting and financial reporting practices and
internal control systems of the Company. During the year ended 31st
March 2007, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings to consider
matters including the 2006 annual report of the Company, internal
controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information for the six months ended 30th September 2006, and the

Company’s IT control environment.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Audit Committee

meetings during the year were as follows:

SNEAZ SR P 5 i i 7 T 2 W L - 9O R ST
Fili s 5 A o

BEREHE

FHHESFIA20054E1 7 1 H B 2 SRR S ] 5
FHEDR1999F2 H 1 H s =2 FF TS
ANz B B FE LB N R 2 Gt R s
A EUH LA B A0 B P B - A 55200743 A 31 H
IEAFRE N B A% e B 0 BT Lok DA RS
AR\ 1200644 4 AR B # - B 522006429 H 30 H
1S 2 R S8 % T AR A AR & BB R DA R A
N FV R R R S S

AR R A A% 22 B B R el 2 B UL T

Attendance
Total number of audit committee meetings: 5 WHE B AR 5K HiY
Independent Non-executive Directors Br AT EF
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo H RS EAE 5/5 100%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung AR A S A 5/5 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Committee Chairman) WA (EET TR 5/5 100%
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INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit

Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance on the

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of business

record, and the compliance with Company’s policies and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems, and to ensure achievement of the

Company’s objectives.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the
Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s
management and functionally to the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Team is authorized to obtain all information necessary to

accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit
Team. Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while paying
close attention to business or operation changes. Regular audit tests
are carried out to ensure key controls are operational. The Internal

Audit Team conducts other projects and investigating work as may

be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed

up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is maintained.

In each half-yearly work plan, manning levels of the Internal Audit
Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of the
internal audit activities and audit results are also submitted to the

Audit Committee twice a year.

RE A
B PO R R B M R
i

TRY 0 42 ol 2 28 5 e AR SE S A A0 A i SERT Bk Z
] SERERE LA B IR AL W BOR S AR P T i o

%R E A B (T IR A8 30) RS €t B E K B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT R I Z R A B IR AT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2007, save as disclosed below, none of the 200743 A 31 H - BR R SCHk g & 4k > AN m #E R K
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests and short 7B ME A FEAT AN SLAT (7 AE I I 90 (o 26 B 7%
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the 75 BRI ([ 7825 ARG ) SEXVER) Z %
issuer or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV B~ MHBR IR 03 e B2 vh B A HE 2 SR » T () IR DR
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (a) were I BN BRI 55352 ZE RO A 5% 00 r it B we il =X
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the (o) AR b 17 2 W) 3 AT 78 05 32 5 i A <7 Rl 2R
register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the g AN A B A T -

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies to be notified to the Company and the Exchange:

I.  Long positions in shares and underlying L AL R RHIR RG24 A

shares of the Company

Beneficial ~ Child under ~ Controlled  Beneficiary Share TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner 18 or Spouse  Corporation of Trust Option  INTEREST Shares

18

WS WA TRREE  ZEEEE FEREA I i WA RbEsk
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,154,878 245,144,176 2,511,050 254,810,104 51.74%
RS note (a) & (b) note (c)

fitit(a) K(b) fzt(c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 23,344 245,144,176 245,167,520 49.78%
Eil B note () & (b)
fift(a) K(b)

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 245,144,176 247,822,266 50.32%
Ho e note () & (b)
[tt7#(a) Z(b)

Mr. CHAN Wai 3,899,022 245,144,176 249,043,198 50.57%
BfR s note (a) & (b)
fifzt(a) K(b)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 5,634,579 735,650 247,730,800 254,101,029 51.59%
Apt e note (f) ~ note (a), (b),
fifzk(f) (d) & (e)
Wik (b) »
(d) Xe)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

L

Long positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai,
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also
directors, and together with their associates collectively controlled
over one-half of the voting power, of Luk Fook (Control) Limited
which held 231,858,000 shares in the Company. These directors
were deemed to be interested in the same shares, relevant disclosures
were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai,
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also
directors, and together with their associates collectively controlled
over one-third of the voting power, of Dragon King Investment Ltd.
which held 13,286,176 shares in the Company. These directors were
deemed to be interested in the same shares, relevant disclosures were
therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary
beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust
was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai
Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which was
the beneficial owner of 2,511,050 shares of the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of
‘Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624
shares of the Company.

Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of
‘Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000
shares of the Company.

Note (f)

The estate of Ms. FONG Chi Ling (deceased) held 735,650 shares of
the Company. Ms. Fong was the spouse of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan.

RN TR 2 R R A ()

TR 2 vl IR0 B A B JBE 1 2 2 T

(#H)
Mtit(a)

B e NN A SR R AR ST AR 2t b e
T e B S R R R R A 2 A
I RE 7S AR () A PR R B S 1T 7S
i (BERD) A PR B Bl A 4822 R1231,858,000/8%
JBe 7o 5256 B SR B A A IR IR PR A RE 4 > 3
w55 B BN = > AT B Dl % DR o 9

MfzE(b)

BOROH oA SR A ek~ BRAR R S At S A
T e B S R R o R R A 2 I A
[ 2 ) RE BT B A BRAS 7 = 43— DA b 3SR i
HEE B AT BR A R IR A9 23 713,286,176 /1B
1 o 5% S5 5 FAR AL AR R B3 v T M A el R
5 T A5 90117 - A 98 485 ol R T o 4

Mtfit(c)

BOARER R MR 2 K By R KRS 5T ([3%05
it X RREZ SN S R R R E BT
B E 230 E 84T e A B R A N> AL RO
TRESTABRA A A A A A 7)2,51 1,050 R Ay 2.
HREA Ao

BifiE(d)

A A ARG AR A A AT 8
FTREA 2 33.3% > TMiHEZ SR LA EAT BRA R RIS
AN 630,624 BB A

Ktit(e)

AR e A A M SR AT IR A W AT 8
FTREAR 2 51% » M HE = SR AT IR w5 A
AN 711,956,000 B 475 o

BEED

BB (O 2B ERA A AR 735,650
sy o J7 = By 2t b a2k 2 T f o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
II.  Long positions in shares and underlying

RN IR 2 B R A (80

IL. IR PEIR A il A fi (FEIE) R

shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited, the 23 vl [ B IRt 22 47 AT
ultimate holding company
Beneficial Child under Controlled Beneficiary TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner 18 or Spouse Corporation of Trust INTEREST Shares
185U
WA AW A FRER ZEwE L2 N A et i 43 b
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 1,556,357 35,263,052 36,819,409 36.82%
HEFILE note (a)
fzt(a)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 837,854 82,853 920,707 0.92%
Al note (b)
ffzt(b)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum 1,600 1,600 0.002%
BIEA e
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 4,553,433 4,553,433 4.55%
R LA note (c)
Wt7t(c)
Mr. CHAN Wai 6,606,643 6,606,643 6.61%
Bt
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,013,544 645,307 1,093,575 8,352,426 8.35%
b note (d) note (e)
Wifit(d) Fifit(e)
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline 60,000 60,000 0.06%

BB /ME
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

II.

Long positions in shares and underlying
shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited, the

ultimate holding company (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary
beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust
was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai
Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which was
the beneficial owner of 35,263,052 shares of Luk Fook (Control)
Limited.

Note (b)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen’s spouse, Ms. FONG Anissa King, held
82,853 shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung together his spouse, Ms. SO Lai Sheung,
controlled the entire issued share capital of WKC Investments
Limited which in turn held 4,553,433 shares of Luk Fook (Control)
Limited.

Note (d)

The estate of Ms. FONG Chi Ling (deceased) held 645,307 shares of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Ms. Fong was the spouse of Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan.

Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of

Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 1,093,575
shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

RN TR 2 R R A ()

II. IR PRI A vl N (FEIR) B
2 il JRe 4t Bt BB 2 45 AT ()
Mtit(a)

WOAR e R B R RS R (%15
FE1) 2 B R N v st AR R E AT
B R 2R E BT A B R A A - AR O
TRE BT A BRA A ARS8 (B A BRA A
35,263,052 ity 2 B A N o

Htik(b)

RN A A 2 B B LR e (B A
RN 7182,853 M i i o

Htik(c)

B TEL B 51 A I A R AR R N L I WK C
Investments Limited 2 #B 2 817 4 TiWKC
Investments Limited AIFFAT 7548 (A0 A PR 7]
4,553,433y o

Htik(d)

TBRE AL (B8 AR N (D) AR
A F645,307 Bt o Or G B AR S AR 2 i
-

Htik(e)

RS T LB EARAF 2O 8

FIRA 233.3% » TiHE F S L BOEA BRA RIHIES A
7R (FERO PR 71,093,575 e «
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2007, save as disclosed below, so far as is known to
any director or chief executive of the Company, no person, other than
a director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

FRBE R

A20074E3 131 H > BT SCHER 51 1A A AR A
ST BRI > B AR R S s AT B
MEAREAT A0 N A A2 ) e A5 BAE BRI AR A W 2
SR I T AR RS 2 B B R ) 35 X VAR 55 2 X 3433
Pd3'€ I OEN/NEIE 77

Controlled TOTAL
Name of Shareholder Beneficial Owner Corporation INTEREST % of Shares
JBE 4 A A A S i 2 A4 JBBr i 2r b
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 231,858,000 - 231,858,000 47.08%

IR (FE) AT PR 7]
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

JBE S AR K €18

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
the Company will be held at 25/F., BEA Tower, Millennium City 5,
418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 23rd
August 2007 (Thursday) at 11:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for
the year ended 31st March 2007.

2. To declare the final dividend for the year ended 31st March
2007.
3. To re-elect the retiring Directors, to authorise the Board to fix

the remuneration of Directors and to appoint additional

Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass

with or without modifications the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (d) below) of all the powers
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such power be and it is

hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of such

power after the end of the Relevant Period;

LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED #&4EH (FFs) 4 R A+
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©

(d)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Directors of the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than
pursuant to a Rights Issue (as defined in paragraph
(d) below) or pursuant to an issue of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue to executives and/
or employees of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares of
the Company or any script dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company, shall not exceed 20% of the total nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
on the date of this Resolution and the said approval to
the Directors in paragraph (a) above shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing

of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(1) the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company:

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company
or any applicable laws to be held; or

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this Resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general

meeting; and
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“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the Directors of the Company to the
shareholders on the register of shareholders of the
Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their
shareholdings as at that date (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of
the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognized regulatory body
or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong
Kong applicable to the Company).”

6. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass

with or without modifications the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (c) below) of all the powers
of the Company to repurchase its own shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) or any other stock exchange on which the
securities of the Company may be listed and
recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and

it is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
total nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of this Resolution and
the said approval to the Directors of the Company in

paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly; and
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(c) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing
of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General

Meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company

or any applicable laws to be held; or

(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority

given under this Resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general

meeting.”

7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass
with or without modifications the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution:

“THAT conditional upon Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6 above
being passed, the aggregate nominal amount of the number of
shares in the capital of the Company which are repurchased
by the Company under the authority granted to the Directors
of the Company as mentioned in Resolution No. 6 above
shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of share

capital that may be allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors of the

Company pursuant to Resolution No. 5 above, provided that
the amount of share capital repurchased by the Company

shall not exceed 10% of the total nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the date of this
Resolution.”

8. To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 24th July 2007
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

JB BB AR K €18

Notes:

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company shall be entitled to appoint
another person as proxy to attend and vote instead of him. On a poll,
votes may be given either personally or by proxy. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company. A member may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion.

The instrument appointing a proxy together with any power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy thereof must be deposited at the principal
place of the Company in Hong Kong at 25/F., BEA Tower,
Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or the adjourned meeting.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from 20th August
2007 (Monday) to 23rd August 2007 (Thursday), both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to establish the identity of the shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
‘Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 17th
August 2007 (Friday).

As at the date of this notice, the Company’s executive directors are
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive), Mr. TSE Moon Chuen,
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul and Mr. LAU Kwok Sum; the non-
executive directors are Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, Mr. CHAN Wai,
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline and Mr. HUI
King Waij; the independent non-executive directors are Mr. HUI Chiu
Chung, Mr. CHIU Wai Mo and Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond
(Chairman).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
IR

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling
of gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and

gemstones, and other accessory items.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segment is set out in

note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 58.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK7 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$34,476,000, which was paid on
12th January 2007.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK11 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$54,176,000 and
payable on 14th September 2007.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during

the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the

Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$932,000 (2006: HK$320,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2007,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$357,575,000 (2006: HK$366,575,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five

financial years ended 31st March are as follows:

HHax
748 F A AR AR H 2 383K %9932,0009 TG (20064 -
320,000 75) o

JBAR
AT 2 SRR BRI 25 o

G g3 1]

R FE A RIEEHE AN R20074F3 H31HZ
A IR G 55 357,575,0008 7T (20064F:366,575,000
#IT) o

TAE B 1 2
AR A31 LT AR BAE A 4F 2 S
B R AR

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T oo T oo T T T
Results E'S
Turnover R 1,461,763 1,598,123 1,961,720 2,126,297 2,845,147
Profit attributable to AN FRERFRE AN
equity holders of JRE A 5 )
the Company 48,867 73,816 125,795 95,695 198,059
Assets and liabilities %% R fif
Total assets MG 667,437 709,189 832,084 898,941 1,120,029
Total liabilities A 98,147 120,451 158,775 170,749 257,144
Shareholders’ funds B E 4 564,822 580,902 664,060 715,164 850,096
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or

sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung

Mr. CHAN Wai

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, Mr. CHIU
Wai Mo and Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Details of the proposed
directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular sent together with

this annual report.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held
on 24th August 2006, the Board was authorized to appoint additional

directors up to a maximum of 20 directors.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 57, is the founder and Chief Executive
of the Group. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee.
He has over 40 years of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has been an associate director of The
Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association since
November 1993. Mr. Wong was invited to act as honorary permanent
chairman of Jadeware Traders Industry & Commerce Association
since April 2001. He was elected as honorary chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild in 2005. He was also elected as Honorary
Chairman of the First General Committee of Guangdong Golden
Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association in 2006. Mr. Wong is a
member of the Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of

the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 57, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Director & Deputy General Manager and also a
member of the Remuneration Committee. He has over 34 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
sales operations and administration of the Group's retail shops. He
has been appointed to various positions over the years including: an
executive committee member of the Diamond Federation of Hong
Kong, China Ltd. since 2000; an alternate committee member of the
Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society since July 2004 and the
Vice-Chairman of Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and
Silver Ornament Merchants Association since 2005. Moreover, he
was the Vice-President of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and
Commerce Association Limited for 10 years and was elected the
Chairman of the fifth session in 2006; executive committee member
of the Tsuen Wan Trade Association Limited since 1996 and was
appointed as a co-opted member of the Tsuen Wan District Council,
Industry & Commerce Committee in 1997 for a 10-year term. He is
also a committee member of the Tsuen Wan District Fight Crime
Committee since 2003 and the Vice-Chairman of the Tsuen Wan
District Economy Promotion Committee from the year 2005 to 2007.
Mr. Tse was appointed as the Chairman of the Tsuen Wan Festival
Lightings Organizing Committee for 7 consecutive years between
1999 and 2005 and became the Vice President in 2006. He also
served as the honourable President of the 32nd session of Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Junior Police Call in the same year. On 1st July 2006,
Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for

Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, aged 54, joined the Group in 1996.
Presently, he is a Director, Company Secretary, Qualified
Accountant, and Financial Controller of the Group. He is a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Law holds a Bachelor’s Degree
with honours in Accountancy. He has over 15 years of accounting
and auditing experience and over 16 years of experience in
commerce. He is mainly responsible for the accounting and finance

of the Group.

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, aged 65, joined the Group as a Branch
Manager in 1995. Presently, he is a Director & Zone Manager
(Yaumatei & Mongkok). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked
as a regional manager in a listed jewellery company in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau has more than 37 years of experience in retailing,

purchasing and wholesaling of jewellery products.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, aged 74, has over 55 years of experience
in retailing and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined
the Group in 1992.

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 77, has over 60 years of experience in retailing
and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group
in 1992.

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, aged 80, has over 40 years of experience in
property development in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1991.

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 40, is the co-founder of the
Group. Miss Yeung has over 19 years of experience in public
relations. Miss Yeung was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and Miss
International of Goodwill in 1987. Miss Yeung was also the president
of the Wai Yin Club for the year 1995-1996. She received the GIA
Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 57, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong
and joined the Group in 1999. He was admitted solicitor of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales and of the Supreme Court of
Hong Kong in 1981 and 1982 respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHIU Wai Mo, aged 57, has over 40 years of experience in
general trading, property investment and management consultancy in
Hong Kong and Japan. Mr. Chiu holds directorships in a number of
companies in Hong Kong and Japan. He joined the Group in 1997
and is a member of both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration

Committee.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung J.P., aged 60, joined the Group in 1997 and is
the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee. Chief Executive Officer, OSK Asia Holdings
Limited, was appointed to the Listing Committee on 16th May 2003.
He is an Independent Non-executive Director of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited, Chun Wo Holdings Limited, Frasers
Property (China) Limited (previously known as Vision Century
Corporation Limited), Jiuzhou Development Company Limited; and
a former Independent Non-executive Director of Wing Lee Holdings
Limited - all of which are listed on the Exchange. Mr. Hui was
appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and was a member of the
Election Committee for the HKSAR. He is a member of the Zhuhai
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is an appointed member of the Securities and Futures
Appeals Tribunal, a member of the Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts and a former member of the Advisory Committee
of the SFC. Mr. Hui is also a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform, an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A and a
vice chairman of the Committee of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers
Association. From 1991 to 1996 and from 1997 to 2000 Mr. Hui was
a member of the Council of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and was a director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Co,
Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, aged 54, joined the Group since 2004.
He was elected Chairman of the Board on 12th April 2005 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lo is the Chairman of a private equity
firm with interest in various business sectors. He has previously
served as advisor, director and financial strategist in many
multidisciplinary listed and major companies. Professionally, Mr. Lo
is a Fellow member and a Corporate Finance designate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Counselor
of Real Estate, USA and a Fellow member of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors, UK. He is also a member of the International
Bar Association and a Certified Hospitality Educator. Mr. Lo is

currently director of three other listed companies in Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 58, is the co-founder and Group General
Manager of the Group since 1991. He is responsible for overall
administration of the Group. He has over 35 years of experience in

the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Miss Irene CHEUNG, aged 30, is the Assistant Legal Affairs
Manager of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the
University of Toronto and a Law Degree from Osgoode Hall of
Canada. She was admitted as solicitor and barrister in Ontario,
Canada in 2003, where she practised Commercial and Family Law.
She joined the Group in 2005 and is responsible for the
administration and coordination of the Group’s legal affairs. Miss
Cheung is currently a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada
and an associate member of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She is
the daughter-in-law of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Chief Executive
of the Group.

Miss CHUNG Vai Ping, Icy, aged 37, is the Product Development
Manager of the Group. She joined the Group in 1990 and is
responsible for the product development of the Group. She has won
the Best of Show Award with her design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong
Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received the GIA
Diamonds Graduate title in 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. FUNG Chi Ming, Fergus, aged 53, joined the Group in 2004 as
Senior Manager in Administration and Human Resources. Mr. Fung
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science through education in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fung has acquired extensive
experience in people, business and project management in various
industries and also has substantial exposure for operations in Hong

Kong and China.

Mr. LEUNG Tak Fai, aged 44, joined the Group as Internal Audit
Manager since 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Information Systems Audit and Control
Association. Being a Certified Information Systems Auditor, he
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration. He has over 14

years of internal auditing experience.

Miss LEUNG Wai Sheung, Garry, aged 39, is the Corporate Affairs
Manager of the Group. She holds a professional Diploma in China
Economy and Finance, a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She
joined the Group in 1994 and is responsible for the Group’s co-
ordination of project development and corporate affairs. She is a
member of the Youth Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong

Guangdong Community Organizations Limited.

Miss LI Wai Ki, Vickie, aged 51, is the Chief Jewellery Designer of
the Group. She joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for
product design and development. Miss Li has over 30 years of
experience in jewellery design. She won several international design
awards are The 1st Greater China Trophy For International Jadeite
Jewellery Design Competition — Premium Award. The 3rd & 4th
Tahitian Pearl Trophy Asia Brooch & Parure Category-Champion
Award.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. LING Hay Ming, Derek, aged 40, joined the Group in 2001 as
I.T. Manager and the Project Manager of Jewellworld.com Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He obtained his Master’s Degree in
Business Administration and Bachelor’s Degree in Computer
Engineering from Santa Clara University in California, U.S.A. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Ling had over 9 years of business

consulting and management experience in U.S.A. and Hong Kong.

Mr. TSANG Wai Hong, aged 40, joined the Group in 2006 as Senior
Project Manager and is responsible for the system development
management. He received a master’s degree in E-commerce and
Internet Computing and a bachelor’s degree in Computer Studies
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 14 years of

experience in information technology and management.

Mr. TSUI Kin Wah, Tommy, aged 49, is the Laboratory Director of
the Group. Mr. Tsui joined the Group in 1995 and has over 17 years
of experience in purchasing and Gemstone Identification. Mr. Tsui is
an Executive Committee member of the Hong Kong Gemological
Association and a fellow member of Gemmological Association of
Great Britain. Besides, Mr. Tsui is a laboratory representative and
approved signatories under the Hong Kong Laboratory Accreditation
Scheme. At June 2007, Mr. Tsui has been appointed by Hong Kong
Council for Academic Accreditation as a Sector/Subject Specialist

for a 3-year period.

Miss WONG Hau Yeung, aged 34, is the Manager in Administration
and Human Resources the Group. Miss Wong joined the Group in
2004 and is responsible for human resources management and
training. She is the fellow of the Institute of Global Managers and the
Chartered Human Resource Consultant of Chartered Association of
Business Administrator. She has over 10 years of experience in the

human resources management of jewellery industry in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 30, is the Operations Manager of
the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for the
execution and implementation of the corporate decisions and
directions of the Group. With his experiences and background
overseas, Mr. Wong was chiefly involved in the set up and opening
of the Group’s North American branches in Canada and the USA. He
was also primarily responsible for the recent rebranding of the
Group’s new corporate image, and the redesign of the Group’s retail
shops. Mr. Wong is also involved in computer hardware integration
and software development of the Group. Furthermore, Mr. Wong is
appointed as a Honorary President of Junior Police Call for Kwai
Tsing District for the year 2007/08 on 1st January 2007. He is the
son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Chief Executive of the Group.

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 46, joined the Group in 1998. Presently,
he is the Business Director. He has over 30 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. He is
responsible for the purchasing of diamonds, gems and gold products
of the Group and the operation of the Company. Mr. Wong is the
brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Chief Executive of the Group.

Mr. YEUNG Wai Hing, aged 42, joined the Group as the Finance &
Accounting Manager in 2002. Mr. Yeung is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 18 years of
finance and accounting experience at a variety of business

organizations including listed groups.

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in

note 15 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors’ service contracts requires the Company to
give a period of notice of more than one year or to pay compensation
or make other payments equivalent to more than one year’s
emoluments (other than statutory compensation). Pursuant to the
Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company save any
Director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director.

The fees and other emoluments of Directors are determined by
reference to industry norm and market conditions, with discretionary
bonus on performance awarded to Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31st March 2007 as disclosed in notes 31(b) & (c) to the
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”™).

The related party transaction, which also constitutes a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules, is set out in note 31(a) to the
financial statements and disclosed in accordance with the Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as follows:

The connected transaction in respect of the tenancy agreement
entered into with Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a
retail shop of the Group was, in the opinion of the directors, entered
into on normal commercial terms which are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned.
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R

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Details of the directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares or
debentures are set out in the following section regarding the

Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 17th April 1997, a share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was
approved at a Special General Meeting of the Company under which
the directors may, at their discretion, grant employees, including any
executive directors, of the Company and any of its subsidiaries
options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms
and conditions stipulated therein. A summary of the Scheme is as

follows:

(1) Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide an employee
incentive compensation plan that is based on corporate
performance and is tied to the Company’s share value with

the goal of increasing shareholders’ wealth.

(2) Eligible persons
Any employees, including any executive directors, of the

Company and any of its subsidiaries.

(3) Number of shares available for issue
At 31st March 2007, the maximum number of shares
available for issue is 9,093,000, representing approximately
1.8% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st
March 2007.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

“)

)

()

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person
No option shall be granted to an eligible person which would
cause, at the date of grant, the aggregate number of shares
over which that options is granted, together with the
aggregate number of shares the subject of any other options
granted to that eligible person under the scheme (whether
such options have or have not been exercised at the date of
grant) to exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares

already issued and issuable under the scheme.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on the
date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:01 p.m. on the
business day preceding the 10th anniversary of the date of

grant.

Exercise price
The option price per share payable on the exercise of an

option:

(a) granted before 1st September 2001 was determined
by the directors as being in no event less than the

higher of:
(i) the nominal value of the shares; and

(i) 80% of the average of the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an

option.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) Yt BB H it ) )
(6) Exercise price (Continued) ©) 1rEEE ()
(b)  granted on or after 1st September 2001 is determined (b) R20014F9 H 1 H 8L 4% 1 2 Wi
by the directors, in compliance with the requirements HE >l 2 = e - I ZRAF & B TR
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, as being at least FUIBEZHE - EVRUTHEZ
the higher of: LgSE
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the 0) A GHREER) B
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on AC T g B SR AE 2R T 5 I
the date of grant, which must be a business ZUHHE K
day; and

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as (i) B H RS & 3 A
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily Wt 2 i 1 B A8 2% 97 31 i
quotations sheets for the 5 business days iy Z - YT AR -

immediately preceding the date of grant.

(7) Remaining life of the Scheme (7) it #Z8 FEH
The Scheme will remain in force until 16th April 2007. T RIS R A HE 200744 H 16H ©
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TR EEA L E R AR N 2 )

share options during the year:

Options Options
held at Options held at
1st April exercised 31st March
2006 during 2007
#20064F the year A20074F
Eligible persons 471H AR AT 3[31H Exercise date
FHHAL AT 2 0B 2 J TR b ESE ] A7 H 39
Executive directors
HATEF
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 4,564,000 4,564,000 - 8th June 2006
AR 20064F6 18 H
All the options above were granted on 14th June 2000 and are DL F B BEIBRE IR 200046 1 14 F 4% 3 > W] A 20004F:
exercisable at any time during the period from 14th June 2000 to 6 H 14 HE20104:6 H 13 B i 4107 Ry 4] > 4% 45 ik
13th June 2010 at an exercise price of HK$0.34 per share. 034 T2 AT B T o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The weighted average closing prices of the shares immediately
before the dates on which options were exercised were HK$1.11 in

relation to the options exercised by an executive director.

During the year, no options were granted, cancelled or lapsed. The
share options granted are not recognised in the financial statements

until they are exercised.

Apart from the share option scheme mentioned above, none of the
directors or chief executives (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had been granted, or exercised, any rights to

subscribe for shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for the year

attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

i JBE R T ) (1)
S AT T 2 S » P 5 4
T8 F T2 DT B 2 11 1 e

A SI7 A R R A 1 ~ 5 B B o 4%t 2 B TR
AT 7 G 7E IS R R A e

Wik At B FBCREE T 0 41 SIE AT o A T B (6
T 4 2 BOAR S AR 1 80 2 1) M T el AT (T
AR A A R BCHAT vk A\ R B AR R

EEES
4 > A S 2 9 B2 A

2007 2006
The largest customers RREF 20.1% 20.9%
Five largest customers combined HARKEF &t 33.4% 34.6%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s

share capital) had interest in the major customers noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s

major suppliers are as follows:

HEFWHFE BN LI F A A LT
5% LA E A ZATAT RO BEEREA Ll ERR S 2
B

E R R
A 7 3 2 A R 2 1748 LA T

2007 2006
The largest customers RREF 24.6% 24.7%
Five largest customers combined TARKEF G5 40.3% 37.2%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s

share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted above.

P B BN LRI E A A AT
5% LA A 2 ATAT R MEREHE A Lot T A
Z Mo
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BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
At 31st March 2007 and 31st March 2006, the Group did not have

any bank loans, overdrafts or other borrowings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under

the laws of Bermuda.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
OF THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain deviations as described in the Corporate

Governance Report set out on pages 18 to 32.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best Practice
(applicable before 1st January 2005), the Board has established an
audit committee comprising all independent non-executive directors,
to monitor the accounting and financial reporting practices and
internal control systems of the Company. Since 1st April 2006, the
audit committee has held several meetings to consider matters
including the 2006 annual report of the Company, internal controls,
the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
for the six months ended 30th September 2006, the 2007 annual

report of the Company and the Group’s IT control environment.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 20th
August 2007 to 23rd August 2007, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17th
August 2007.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its directors as at 24th July 2007, being the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report, the public
float of shares in the Company has remained above the minimum

percentage required by The Stock Exchange throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board,
LO Mun Lam, Raymond

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th July 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T S A B

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKEGMEHA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 117,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31st March 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
A T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st March 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th July 2007

% B vy 5 AT

A FAT R ARPE IR N B A B % 5 4 B IS TR
PR B L M IR B 198 14E (N AL S0 it
i) 0 B P SRR 155 > BRI 2 A AR 455 ) At ) o T
A G FA R 1 N2 AT ] HoAth A 1B R
ATAT EAT: -

Tl CAREAT T G a2 & AR 1 A T A IR U0
AT F S ) SR AP AR T P AR - AR B S
BT LIRS HIHEE BLAF B iR B A7
A A B R B R R A

TGN R TRE PP ASEICR B8 U5 o P S
PEFR ORI A AZ B o BT 198 5 O TR e TR R A% S
PO T » 4 Al 7 SO I ik 2 S B R
A B S R L ) g o 7 Rt 2% S5 J B e - A2
FTi 25 i B % 2 ) A S I UL - 9 S 5 3
R BR ) PR A > AR 0 1 R I » TSI I 7
S50 F RGP AR B R L - LA T
ARSI RN E R BRI S R R i g5t
A B > ARG P55 ik ok B A 51 7 2K

FRAARLR - FA PTHETS ) T A% M A2 70 L A 6
R IRAI T AR

BER

WAL > %5455 H R CARPE R M A B
AR EMA TR BAF KL HEMER2007
EIAZIHMTBR K BEMBREZH LFE
V14 5 7 e B0 4 7 » N7 8 e MR s A IR 1 38
TR Z B iR

B SR K B Bt B B
Bl

200747 H 24 H

LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED #&4EH (FFs) 4 R A+

57



58

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
B RS

(For the year ended 31st March 2007)
(#F200743 /131 A IEFEE)

2007 2006
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
it T THsIT
Turnover e 6 2,845,147 2,126,297
Cost of sales B B A 9 (2,257,306) (1,666,615)
Gross profit B 587,841 459,682
Other income HAhsg A 7 49,676 25,366
Selling and distribution costs S Ry s 9 (375,504) (333,241)
Administrative expenses TTECE: 9 (45,886) (43,001)
Other gains HAts #5 8 18,740 4,923
Operating profit R 1 1) 234,867 113,729
Finance costs BEs % 10 (179) (1,309)
Profit before taxation W il i ) 234,688 112,420
Taxation BiIH 11 (35,728) (15,891)
Profit for the year A A i A 198,960 96,529
Profit attributable to: JE AL 5 ) -
Equity holders of the Company KA RIHER A A 12 198,059 95,695
Minority interests DBUR RS 901 834
198,960 96,529
Earnings per share for profit attributable to A/ "I FEH A
the equity holders of the Company JRRE A i ] £ I 21 13
Basic FAR HK40.3 cents HK19.7 cents
Diluted g HK40.3 cents HK19.5 cents
Dividends BB 14 88,652 48,794

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A HEARR

(As at 31st March 2007)
(74200743 H31 H)

2007 2006
Note HK$’0(E) HK$" 000
Bt T-#I T
ASSETS <03
Non-current assets I
Property, plant and equipment W3 W T s 17 103,130 105,107
Leasehold land and land use rights FHEE - Hb B A b AR 18 8,169 12,835
Trading licence 38 5 LR 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits T &ie 21,915 19,575
Deferred tax assets PEFERL T G 27 7,468 6,257
141,762 144,854
Current assets B g E
Inventories T 20 751,854 611,986
Trade receivables 5 5 MEWUIRIE 22 19,318 12,144
Deposits, prepayments and 4 TAATHRIE &
other receivables At A BT 32,561 20,369
Non-current asset held for sale FeA it 8 2 R B & 23 - 850
Bank balances and cash SRITHE AR B 4 29 174,534 108,738
978,267 754,087
Total assets ML 1,120,029 898,941
EQUITY HE2E
Capital and reserves attributable to A\ FIRE £ R N EAG
the Company’s equity holders A R St
Share capital JieAs 25 49,250 48,794
Share premium JBeA73 i 1 25 58,884 57,789
Reserves Tt 26 687,786 574,425
Proposed dividends HEUR L 14 54,176 34,156
850,096 715,164
Minority interests DB R AR 12,789 13,028
Total equity £k 862,885 728,192
LIABILITIES i
Non-current liabilities FEM B B AR
Deferred tax liabilities PRI I & f 27 129 623
Current liabilities T B
Trade and other payables B 5 B H A HRIE 24 227,304 161,641
Taxation payable JREASH B T 29,711 8,485
257,015 170,126
Total liabilities MAfE 257,144 170,749
Total equity and liabilities HE 1 SRR AR 1,120,029 898,941
Net current assets T & R E 721,252 583,961
Total assets less current liabilities A A W ) A R 863,014 728,815

WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
W CE S
Director Director

I I

63 Z 117 H WM 5E £ 45 B BB R ) B B 4 -

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
¥R A

(As at 31st March 2007)
(74200743 H31 H)
2007 2006
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Mt T-#I Tt
ASSETS <3
Non-current assets FE T B
Investments in subsidiaries oy NIk S =y 19 298,887 298,887
Current assets B G
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA B o8 A ) MR TE 21 180,521 180,521
Taxation recoverable ALY [ B TE - 18
Bank balances and cash SRITH B LBl & 29 1,035 1,127
181,556 181,666
Total assets ML 480,443 480,553
EQUITY W%
Capital and reserves A et
Share capital JieAs 25 49,250 48,794
Share premium JBe A7 16 25 58,884 57,789
Reserves feti g 26 303,399 332,419
Proposed dividends HEUR L 14 54,176 34,156
465,709 473,158
LIABILITIES fifi
Current liabilities T B
Amount due to a subsidiary JREASH— R I F R TE 21 14,282 6,851
Other payables oAb AT HETH 452 544
Total liabilities A E 14,734 7,395
Total equity and liabilities HE i AR X AR 480,443 480,553
Net current assets TR & R E 166,822 174,271
Total assets less current liabilities AR W B S 465,709 473,158
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
W i 2
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SR fe S B

(For the year ended 31st March 2007)
(#F200743 /131 A IEFEE)

Share Share Minority Total
capital premium  Reserves  Subtotal interest equity
»Y
A b it Ak B bl e
HK$°000  HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T T
(Note 26(a))
(Htzt26(a))
For the year ended BE20074E3/31H
31st March 2007 AR
As at Ist Apr 2006 J#20064°4 H 1 H 48,794 57,789 608,581 715,164 13,028 728,192
Exchange differences T 5246 - - 7,696 7,696 267 7,963
Issue of shares (Note 25) BT (HfaE25) 456 1,095 - 1,551 - 1,551
Profit for the year AR Bl A - - 198,059 198,059 901 198,960
Dividends paid BEARE - - (68,951) (68,951) - (68,951)
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder —%HHEA F11—%4
by a subsidiary DB AR B - - - - (368) (368)
Deficit on revaluation of Hfth¥ 32 T fbi
other properties - - (3,423) (3,423) - (3,423)
Repayment of the loan from a minority ~ —%MHEA F1—%4
shareholder of a subsidiary BRI R B - - - - (1,039) (1,039)
As at 31st March 2007 20074331 H 49,250 58,884 741,962 850,096 12,789 862,885
For the year ended BE20064:3/131H
31st March 2006 IEAE B
As at 1st Apr 2005 J#200544H 1 H 48,544 57,189 558,327 664,060 9,249 673,309
Exchange differences [ S =% = = 1,875 1,875 = 1,875
Issue of shares (Note 25) BT (HfaE25) 250 600 = 850 = 850
Profit for the year R i - = 95,695 95,695 834 96,529
Dividends paid EARE = = (53,474)  (53,474) = (53,474)
Surplus on revaluation of HAHrEz B AR
other properties - - 6,158 6,158 - 6,158
Investment in a subsidiary by a —ZOBRRR K
minority shareholder Wit A 7l 2 Bt = = = = 2,945 2,945
As at 315t March 2006 1200643 7131 18794 57789 608581 715064 13028 728192

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ST Blein R

(For the year ended 31st March 2007)
(#F200743 /131 A IEFEE)

2007 2006
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt T#x T
Cash flows from operating activities BEEE  BAEn &
Net cash generated from operations B BT 28 153,963 103,174
Hong Kong profits tax paid BT AR B (16,130) (20,062)
Overseas income taxes paid BTSN B a7 (2,460)
Net cash generated from operating activities /%75 &) & 4~ B4 1548 137,756 80,652
Cash flows from investing activities BEEH) 2 BlG =
Purchase of property, plant and Wi 00 2 s B st
equipment and payment for AR B b
leasehold land and land use rights - i RE (28,263) (33,803)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment &2 Bk 5 Kt K
and leasehold land and land use rights FEE A i % A b A 18,278 264
Disposal of non-current asset held for sale &k &2 B & E 850 -
Interest received B YA 2,438 835
Repayment of loan from investee R IE N R 2 R - 25
Net cash used in investing activities &G B i B R (6,697) (32,679)
Cash flows from financing activities BT 2 Bl
Proceeds from short-term bank loans 58 BASRA T B R T 15 B IH 40,000 =
Repayment of short-term bank loans 72 0 W SRAT Bk (40,000) (21,420)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SRIT R BB 2 F B 179) (1,309)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares B4 IR T A9 ARE 1,551 850
Dividends paid BRI S (68,951) (53,474)
Repayment of the loan from a minority — KB A R ) — 45 D
shareholder of a subsidiary JE B (7 Bk (1,039) =
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder — KB N Rl — 4
by a subsidiary DB AR RS (368) =
Investment in a subsidiary by — % VBB R
a minority shareholder —XMB A A& - 2,945
Net cash used in financing activities Al 93 1B iy ) B v (68,986) (72,408)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and B4 KBS EY
cash equivalents Z ¥, (W) B 62,073 (24.,435)
Cash and cash equivalents at R4 1HZ /&K
1st April B &S EY 108,738 131,406
Exchange differences [ifE o, 2% %8 3,723 1,767
Cash and cash equivalents at R3H31H 284 Kk
31st March B &S EY 174,534 108,738

The notes on pages 63 to 117 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P R A B

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the "Company")
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3rd September 1996 as a
company with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and
wholesaling of gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set

jewellery and gemstones and other accessory items.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 24th July 2007.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”), including Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified by the revaluation of buildings,
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss (if

any), which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKEFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations are mandatory for financial year ended 31st

March 2007.

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 21 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4

(Amendments)
HKFRS 1 & HKFRS 6

(Amendments)

HKFRS 6

HKFRS-Int 4

HKFRS-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures

Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and
Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease

Rights to interest arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating
in a Specific Market — Waste
Electrical and Electronic

Equipment

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations did not have any significant

financial impacts to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

P PILHE (@)

DA B2 0 ) Y R B R R R o
Heg ELIG A4 FLARA - 3 S 0 » 7 A b
ST U M L AT B R A G A A

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2
The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective and

have not been early adopted. The directors anticipate that the

adoption of these standards, amendments to standards and FT ORI W R -
interpretations will not result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies.
HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of Financial s Ei AL R 251
Statements: Capital Disclosures (CHEN! BT
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ViR B R A SRR iR
ST
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments B Uik B 4R KB
8%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement ik (EEMHRE ERSEg RS
Approach under HKAS 29 mRERY) — 29455 [ ik #A iz
Financial Reporting in i L Hk AR A EA S i
Hyperinflationary Economies T REIE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 s (BRI AR R AE
aHLEE) — 25 Y o
i L
HKIFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded it (B PR B EIAL
Derivatives mRERY) — T
i L
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and it (B PR o B S A O
Impairment mRERY) —
i B 109
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury A (P B WS AT IR HE R 5
Share Transactions mRERY) — 25— B K JEAF
AR 119E B A2 5
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements it (B PR IR e R T
aRLEE) —
i B 120
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interests. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, including any contingent
liabilities assumed, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A M

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated but considered an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value

of net assets of the subsidiary.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of

the Group that is engaged and operated either in

providing particular products or services (business

segment), or in providing products or services within

a particular economic environment (geographical

segment), and which is subject to risks and returns

that are different from those of other segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
In accordance with its internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segment
information be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format.

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit
and loss are recognised in profit and loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserve in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A M

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(¢c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a

functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(a)

(b)

©

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise retail shops and other properties
such as office premises. Retail shops are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Properties other than retail shops
("other properties") are stated at valuation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. The valuation,
being fair value at the date of valuation, is determined
by the directors based on independent valuations
which are performed every three years. In the
intervening years, the directors review the carrying
value of the buildings and adjustment is made where
there has been a material change. Increases in
valuation are credited to the revaluation reserve in
shareholders' equity. Decreases in valuation are first
offset against previous increases of the same property
and are thereafter expensed in the income statement.
Each year the difference between depreciation based
on the revaluated carrying amount of the asset
expensed in the income statement and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost is transferred from
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the unexpired period of leases or the expected useful
lives of the buildings to the Group, whichever is
shorter.

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes the purchase price
of the asset and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

(e

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses
of each asset to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the unexpired

lease period, whichever

is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 20%
and computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance

sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 3 (g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated

income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights
Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plants and buildings are generally
situated for a period from 50 to 70 years.
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(Continued)

)

®

(h)

Trading licence o
Trading licence with indefinite useful lives is carried

at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets (2
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value, less costs to sell, and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that have suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of

the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories (h)
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,

first-out basis. The cost of merchandise comprises

raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs. It

excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

0)

(k)

U]

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Such provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts, if any.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments, if any, are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value with changes in fair

value recognised within the income statement.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

(n) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

EEEHHBOR @)

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(Continued)
(0) Employee benefits (o) MEHFKA
(i) Employee leave entitlements ) 1 5 IR HEF)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are & B = A £ R 2 HEF R L
recognised when they accrue to employees. A SERER A AR IR SR - A SE
provision is made for the estimated liability WA E A B I Bt
for annual leave as a result of services IR 5 i A 2 AR 2 Ak wH A
rendered by employees up to the balance EAE M o

sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

(ii) Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable

estimate of the obligation can be made.

(iii)  Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held in a separately
administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by the employer’s voluntary
contribution forfeited from the MPF Scheme
by those employees who leave the scheme

prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EBEEGHHEOER @)

(Continued)
(0) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) MERFA &)
(iv)  Share-based compensation (iv) IR G S22 B2
The Group operates an equity-settled, share- A G T SR A — TH DA A 45
based compensation plan. The fair value of L TR ST A M <t 8o

the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as
employee share option expense in the income

statement. The total amount to be expensed

1 B 43 A 25 1 452 3 i e
HEAE Rt 2 - EAE IR 4
Dy i L FBOHE B S
i B U ) S 2 MR

over the vesting period is determined by T 2% F B S ORE 2 N
reference to the fair value of the options (B 5 > PN AR AT AT JF T
granted, excluding the impact of any non- B VB 2 B o A A T AR

market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to employee
share-based compensation reserve over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share

premium when the options are exercised.
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(p) Provisions (7))
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

FEEFHEOR @)

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(Continued)
(99 Revenue recognition (@)

W it e

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sales of goods in the

ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

shown net of value-added-tax, sales returns and

discounts, after eliminated sales within the Group.

Turnover represents revenues recognised on sales of

Wi 4 A SR R H R 2ERS ik B
10y T WA R AR 2 P o
At FTBRHE (A~ 18 8] A4 6 364
A5 I AT 2 8 B AR B AR

CES SRy RN A€ TR 1A

goods, and are recognised as follows: RN -

(i) Sales of goods — wholesales (i) HEEE T —
Sales of goods are recognised when a group HAEBERO S S
entity has delivered products to the THEEE TS MBS E B
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion o (1) U 5 A A B 2 A
over the channel and price to sell the POERE HRARBITRE
products, and there is no unfulfilled AT 7T B 5 B AL % 7 6
obligation that could affect the wholesale's I8 AR - B i 1 1 R R
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not AR HE B ATE T £ 48
occur until the products have been delivered JE Hh B BESEAN IR SRR B
to the specified location, the risks of Lo Sigiie S RNE iR fisfa)
obsolescence and loss have been transferred HRIE S G AU it~ 2l
to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler Bl ek O AR g > SR S I
has accepted the products in accordance with A % B R R I A Rl
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have Wk BB AT 1% > 88 S AT
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence AR
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

(ii) Sales of goods — retail (ii) HER N —FE&

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail

sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

It is the Group's policy to sell its products to
the end customer with a right of return within
one year. Accumulated experience is used to

estimate and provide for such returns at the

B B o 0 — 1R 46 [
1] %5 )5 8 B W e it o %
B DABE 2 B T R A
i

A2 ] 1Y R 1] R AR
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38 B - BT BB AL BR T
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time of sale. The Group does not operate any A 454 o A 2 [ S e 88
loyalty programme. AT % 5 St o

LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED #&4EH (FFs) 4 R A+

77



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

™

)

®

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Royalty income in respect of the use of the Group's
trademarks is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant

agreements.

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services is recognised in the
period the services are rendered in accordance with

the substance of the relevant agreements.

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on a
time proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

Dividend distribution

Interim/final dividends to the Company's
shareholders are recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are declared/approved by the

Company's directors/shareholders respectively.

Comparative figures
When necessary, prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the changes in

presentation in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including foreign exchange risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and commodity
price risk. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Group's
policies. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
with most of the transactions settled in HK$.
The Group also has retail operations in the
United States, Canada, Macau and the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC"),
which are relatively insignificant to the
Group. The Group's assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations that
are exposed to foreign exchange risk are
primarily with respect to Renminbi ("RMB").
The Group has not used any forward contracts
to hedge its exposure as foreign currency risk

is considered minimal.

As at 31st March 2007, the Group had certain
deposits in banks (Note 29) denominated in
foreign currencies. The HK$ has been
relatively stable against the RMB over the
past few years. Since July 2005, the RMB has
appreciated against the HKS. The directors
are of the opinion that such appreciation did
not have any material adverse impact on the

Group's net assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amount of trade
receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group's historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible trade receivables has been made

in the financial statements.

(iii)  Liquidity risk
The Group's primary cash requirements have
been for additions to and upgrades of
property, plant and equipment, payment for
purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated

from operations and bank borrowings.

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group's policy is to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have
available funding through adequate
committed credit facilities to meet its working
capital requirements. The directors believe
that the Group has obtained sufficient general
credit facilities from banks for financing
capital commitments in the near future and

for working capital purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(@)

()

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk
The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates and the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the cash and cash equivalents, details of
which have been disclosed in Note 29. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

(v) Commodity price risk
The Group is engaged in the sale of gold and
platinum ornaments. The gold and platinum
markets are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A
decline in prices of gold and platinum could
adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. The Group uses a limited
number of future contracts to reduce its
exposure to fluctuations in the prices of gold
and platinum.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial
assets, including bank balances and cash, trade
receivables, other receivables, prepayments and
deposits, and current financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables, approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities. The fair value of
the "non-current asset held for sale" is determined
with reference to the estimated cash flows arising
from the disposal of the asset.

The face value, less any estimated credit adjustments,
of financial assets and liabilities with maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(i) Depreciation and amortisation
The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives and related deprecation/amortisation
charges for the property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights with reference to
the estimated periods over which the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. Management will revise the depreciation and
amortisation charge where useful lives are different
from those previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic

assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(ii) Inventories
Management estimates the net realisable value of
merchandise based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at each balance sheet date and makes
provision for impairment on obsolete and slow-
moving items to write-off or write-down inventories

to their net realisable value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(@iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
3(g). The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value,
which is prepared on the basis of management's
assumptions and estimates. Detailed sensitivity
analyses are performed and management must be
confident that the carrying amount of the relevant

assets will be recovered in full.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period

in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  BEEXSBEFR
INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and AR AR < iR B e A B
wholesaling of gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set 1 1 B A DA S H A 2 7 B R A S TS

jewellery and gemstones, and other accessory items.

Turnover represents invoiced sales of goods and includes an B RS B R N IR A DL A R A
amount of HK$641,913,000 (2006: HK$491,338,000) which BB 641,913,000 T8 (20064F
was settled by gold bullion and the gold bullion was in turn 491,338,000 70) - A B0 T3 I UGS 5 &
used for settlement of trade payables. 5y EATT BRIH -

Primary reporting format — business segments EXX 25 Yk 2 7ig ]

The Group is organised mainly in Hong Kong into two major R A ) = A A U R T T B i -

business segments:

. Retailing of jewellery . oA E

. Manufacturing and wholesaling of jewellery, . T A A E RS AL A AR RT
including the provision of technical support and PR BRSNS % B AR5 LA B
consultancy services, and quality control of jewellery i 7 5 2

products to certain licensees

Other operations of the Group mainly represent investments A 42 [ A 365 3 B AR 4R G DA B B LT
and services relating to internet and software development. A B A B B 2 RHS

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 4E#}



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  ERBBELSWER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FRR G — FH A ()
(Continued)
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
£ it Rt TR i A%H

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000
T TEr T T T TEx Ti#x T Tk T

Turnover from external HIMEP B

customers 1847555 1427434 995,049 696,843 2,543 2,020 - - 2845147 2,126,097
Inter-segment sales AHHEER 5805 40200 588,128 435,700 - 23 (643,933  (476,015) - =
Other income from external K AESEFZ

customers HA 1,713 915 443 2570 4720 1,381 - - 49676 25366
Tnter-segment other income /B Z S At - = - = 518 797 (578) (797) - -
Total i 1905073 1468,641 1,626,420 1,155,113 7841 4700 (644,511)  (476,812) 2,894,823 2,151,663
Segment results IR 163,105 118490 100,140 35,068 3,460 11 (8,59)  (811) 258115 150,758
Gain on disposal of HE—TEEL

a property g - = - - 10610 = - - 10610 =
Tnterest income FIEMA 2438 835
Unallocated costs RORHA (36,206)  (37.864)
Operating profit e 24867 113729
Finance costs FER 79 (1,309)
Profit before taxation BBLATa Al 234,688 112,420
Taxation BA (35728 (15801
Profit for the year B Al 198960 96,529
Segment assets EE 722,480 550222 830,096 579,997 12,621 15370 (518920) (313,009) 1,046,283 832,580
Unallocated assets RORERE 146 66361
Total assets BeE 1,120,029 898,941
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 R B ik
6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  ERERSWEH @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FRR G — FH A ()
(Continued)
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
£ Ll Tt el it A%H
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000  HKS000
T#x  TExr Tk TEx Tk TEx  T#x  TEx  T#x  TEx
Segment liabilities SHALE (640,282) (396,872  (99811)  (64790)  (L,651) (2,575 518922 313009 (222822) (151,228)
Unallocated liabilities AEAR (34322) (19520
Total liabilities byl (257,144)  (170,749)
Depreciation it
- allocated eyl 13,186 8,545 8,070 6,256 18 308 - - 21274 15,109
~ unallocated RN 4219 3747
25,493 18,856
Amortisation i
~ allocated -EAE 16 1 13 12 7 15 - = 156 138
~ unallocated i 13 !
169 182
Capital expenditure BARR
- allocated -EAE 19,112 12,750 7,145 18,336 - 911 - - 26,857 31,997
— unallocated ~K4E 1,406 1,806

2823 33803
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 3 5 b
6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  BEFEENER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments

The geographical analysis is divided into three regions:

7 )3 2 75 A — Wb It 4

[ 53 A7 8 5 2 = e [ -

. Hong Kong . Fis
O PRC . T[]
. Others . HoAtly
Turnover Total assets Capital expenditure
BEM MR HARX
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T THTT T TH#T T T T
Hong Kong s 2,090,128 2,019,515 809,032 653,202 16,587 13,432
PRC i 38,938 22,323 252,396 195,084 9,033 18,644
Others oAt 116,081 84,459 58,601 50,655 2,643 1,727
2,845,147 2,126,297 1,120,029 898,941 28,263 33,803
OTHER INCOME 7 KA
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
Royalty income BFHEYCA 29,920 15,502
Consultancy fee income SR ON 10,148 7,054
Others HoAh 9,608 2,810
49,676 25,366
OTHER GAINS 8 bt
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#L THs7T
Gain on disposal of a property & —IHY 2 4R 10,610 =
Interest income FLEMA 2,438 835
Net exchange gain BEE 5t 4 1 3,716 920
Write back of provision for ] 30 B A7 5 4 A
slow-moving inventories 1,976 3,168
18,740 4,923
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W 5 e B ik
9  EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 PP X
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
THL Tt
Cost of inventories sold BB AA 2,257,306 1,666,615
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) &8 A< (6145 # H M 4) 176,772 155,076
Operating lease rentals in respect of land b AT RE S e
and buildings 103,188 91,156
Depreciation of property, plant and W3- B B es
equipment 25,493 18,856
Auditor’s remuneration 1% By R 4 2,846 2.666
Loss on disposal of other property, plant HhE HAtb 2 s K
and equipment BdiPa i 2,124 1,572
Provision for permanent impairment of A s BB R KA
available-for-sale financial asset MEAIERE Ll - 1,042
Write-down of non-current asset held for WSR2 JE
sale to fair value (Note 23) R NTAE (Hf7E23) - 662
Deficit on revaluation of other properties Ho At 2 2 = Al e b 269 22
Amortisation of leasehold land and land FHE = s K7 - i 87 )RR S
use rights 169 182
Others HoAth 110,529 105,008
Total cost of sales, selling and BB BLAS - B R4 B
distribution costs and DA AT 4R
administrative expenses 2,678,696 2,042,857
Representing: -
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
THL Tt
Cost of sales S A 2,257,306 1,666,615
Selling and distribution costs B Ry B H 375,504 333,241
Administrative expenses THE H 45,886 43,001
2,678,696 2,042,857




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA5 A M

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 W#HEEN
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T-Wt Tt
Interest on short-term bank loans SEERAT B2 LS 179 1,309
11 TAXATION 11 BX
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Hong Kong profits tax FHEAEH
— current — Rp i 37,047 17,448
— over-provision in prior years — {EAF B R A (2,316) (3,728)
Overseas taxation EZAN Nz 2,702 3,370
Deferred taxation (Note 27) IEREBLIE (K at27) (1,705) (1,199)
35,728 15,891

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%

(2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

s AR BT 0 A 45 B A T IR B i
Bi2R17.5% (20064F:17.5%) HL M 41
Tt ) 2 B TE T A A A M AR U ) 4
A 42 [ SE T U 7E 10 R W B R e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 R B ik
11 TAXATION (Continued) 11 B @)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs 7 B2 [ R 30 T i ) < A T BRLfe P A U B R
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the FHA 2 PR BIIHZE SN T
taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THs7T

Profit before taxation Wl i Vi 1] 234,688 112,420
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% FBLF17.5% (20064F 1 17.5%)

(2006: 17.5%) FHE 2 BiIE 41,070 19,674
Effect of different taxation rates in HoAh B KBl R AR R] 2 5 2

other countries (664) 122
Income not subject to taxation THERBLZ A (5,421) (3,007)
Expenses not deductible for taxation ANHHNBLZ S

purposes 2,724 2,144
Over-provision in prior years AR B R AR (2,316) (3,728)
Unrecognised tax losses AR B A 4R 765 1,189
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ) I DAL R R B s 4R

tax losses (430) (503)

35,728 15,891

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$59,951,000 (2006: HK$59,696,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 5 i o B ik
13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13

14

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$198,059,000 (2006: HK$95,695,000)
and the weighted average number of 491,645,066 (2006:
486,738,371) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$198,059,000 (2006: HK$95,695,000) and the
weighted average number of 491,645,066 (2006:
490,458,067) ordinary shares in issue during the year after
adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary
shares deemed to be issued at no consideration if all
outstanding share options granted under the share option

scheme of the Company had been exercised.

(532

B R B AT R T AR AR A E M i AT A
AR 4E [ %5 7111 98,059,000 % JG (2006
4F 195,695,000 7T) SAFE N 2B T A 2
TNHEF- 1854 91,645,066 % (20064 :
486,738,371 1%) 515 -

B PR 280 1) T AR A N ) M i AT A
b A 4 8195 #11198,059,000 % 7T (20064F -
95,695,000 75) e 4F AR SRR A A ]
W PR - B 52 ) 2 BT A 0 A A T (0 e PR
AT AR 2 A AR BT 2 BT A VB AE
L B 5 AR AR 2 BT
TNHEF- 2854 91,645,066 % (20064 :
490,458,067/1%) FHH -

DIVIDENDS 14 R
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THs7T
2006/07 interim, paid, of HK$0.07 EL IR2006/074F B H 1 1 5 A e
(2005/06 interim: HK$0.03) 3 20.07%5 I (2005/064F &
per ordinary share HHIEE 00345 7T) 34,476 14,638
2006/07 final, proposed, of HK$0.11 £ IR2006/074F B K HA B B A ik
(2005/06 final: HK$0.07) A5 0.1 195 7T (2005/064FFE
per ordinary share (note) KA 0,073 70) (HfaE) 54,176 34,156

Note: At a meeting held on 24th July 2007, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK$0.11 per ordinary share. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as dividends payable in
these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st

March 2008.

BifaE: iA20074FE7H24 H 8472 Gk b s
e E URAI BB 1 B IR0 1 1S T B
J5E YR PR S5 SIG E7A G 45 FP S R v SR B
JEEASH A5 o M 19714 0 52200843 H 31 H 1E
AEE B AR B8 28 4 TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W 5 e B ik
15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 15 BAREAEA
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THsIT
Net contributions to the MPF Scheme WEEAEEET L mES
charged to the consolidated GiE L et
income statement 6,641 5,480

Contributions under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

are immediately fully vested in the employees.

At 31st March 2007 and 2006, there were no unutilised

AR o ) P AR A o 2 (R B IR A
[ S HEE

JA20074F 5200643 H 31 H » M AR B i 2

forfeited contributions. B
16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 #E R HM 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HFWHE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the A R REAS A ) 2 S 2 I AR A
directors of the Company during the year were as I
follows:
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
Fees Ml 933 921
Salaries, allowances and 4 B KRB R 3
benefits—in—kind 15,692 11,962
Performance and discretionary R B S AF BT Z AL AL
bonuses 4,878 2,300
Contributions to pension plan XN B LS 248 268
Total payable and expensed in the — JEATHRIA K& B A WA HS H %
financial statements BB S 2 AR 21,751 15,451
Benefit from exercise of share AT B AR ST 153 R i
options 3,286 3,650
25,037 19,101
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S o Wi
16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 #H RSB 4 a0
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HFME )
The remuneration of each director is set out below: KEF MBI
For the year ended 31st March 2007
HBE2007483 1 31 HAL4E ¥
Total
payable and
expensed
Employer’s in the Benefit
confribution ~ financial from
fopension  statements exercise
Discretionary scheme  MHRE  of share
honuses  Housing WY RO options Total
Fees  Salaries  FMEHM  allowances WHAAH O WEELH  GUMBE  emoluments
Name of Director HARA ik £ ZRE RN b Wx2ME O REEE MRAR
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
T T T T T T T T
WONG Wai Sheung wfEH 5 1547 2,549 - 117 15,268 3,286 18,554
TSE Moon Chuen a2 5 919 m - 4 1,734 - 1,734
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul Bkt 55 1,082 1275 - 50 2462 - 2462
LAU Kwok Sum HE% 55 799 W - k] 1,229 - 1,229
WONG Koon Cheung R 55 115 - - - 170 - 170
CHAN Wai el 5 115 - - - 1m0 - m
LEE Shu Kuan ] 5 115 - - - 1m0 - m
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline %3}
(note) (HizH) 55 - - - - 55 - 55
HUI King Wai A 110 - - - - 110 - 110
CHIU Wai Mo’ il 1WA - - - - 123 - 13
HUI Chiu Chung’ A 123 - - - - 13 - 123
LO Mun Lam, Raymond® &5 13 - - - - 137 - 137
933 15,692 4878 - 28 21,751 3,286 25,037
Note: Mtat:

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a service
contract with a subsidiary of the Company for her exclusive

services for the promotion of the products and services of #E31

the Group (see also Note 31(b)).

b)) °

B B /N L AR S R IR T A 2 I » L e i A 2 [ £
TEE it B 055 » BAS 0 ) — W 4 R T SL RS & 40 (55 SLbf
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR W R R AT P B & ()
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HFME )
For the year ended 31st March 2006
200643 H31 H R4
Total
payable and
expensed
Employer's in the Benefit
contribution financial from
topension  staatements exercise
Discretionary scheme  TEMIRE of share
bonuses  Housing BEH  RERME options Total
Fees Salaries  WIEEM  allowances BikSFE  REIH  HEERE  emoluments
Name of Director w5 ik HaE R RERE 2l WXZAE O FRNE MeAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tk T Tk T T Tk T Tk
WONG Wai Sheung R 55 8,267 1,21 - 114 9,663 3,650 13313
TSE Moon Chuen 2 55 669 307 251 40 132 - 1,32
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul Bt 55 1,057 613 - 49 1,774 - 1,774
POON Kam Chi it 41 598 - - 8 667 - 667
LAU Kwok Sum BlEA 55 775 153 - 3 1,020 - 1,020
WONG Koon Cheung 7t 55 115 - - - 170 - 170
CHAN Wai el 55 115 - - - 170 - 170
LEE Shu Kuan 2 55 115 - - - 170 - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline %3} 5 = = = = 5 = 5
HUI King Wai A 110 = = = = 110 - 110
CHIU Wai Mo* Ty 110 - - - - 110 - 110
HUI Chiu Chung’ A 110 - - - - 110 - 110
LO Mun Lam, Raymond’ (7" 110 = = = = 110 - 110
91 1,711 2,300 251 268 15451 3,650 19,101

# Independent non-executive directors

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of
the years ended 31st March 2006 and 2007.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 4E#}

# B T

HE20064F K200743 H31 A 1E4E
JEE » St 41 6 28 e SR AT P 4



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

16

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals
Among the five highest paid individuals, four (2006:
four) of them are directors of the Company and the

details of their remuneration have been disclosed in

W R R AT P B & ()

(b)

T H A A

F A e B A L& - 04 (2006
) BN A 5 2
SREEE R B R - AR =

the preceding paragraph. The emoluments of the A2 B Hg T :
remaining highest paid individual are as follows:
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THE T
Salaries, allowances and g B KB 5
benefits-in-kind 1,407 1,381
Performance and discretionary 7RI R E B AL AL
bonuses 1,195 575
Contributions to pension plan IRRTH Bk 52 51
2,654 2,007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W3 W5 Kot i
Group £
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
Other improve-  computer  Plant and
properties ments  equipment  machinery Motor Construction
My AERE  BAKER Fib: vehicles  in progress Total
Wk kB R RHw Wl IR ki
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T
Cost or valuation FA [
At Ist April 2006 J#20064E4 H 1H 59,159 59,759 35,544 16,254 4422 5,097 180,235
Exchange adjustment I 5 7 8 1,712 316 564 1,386 280 526 4,784
Additions, at cost BB RAE - 19,490 4,755 2,406 256 1,356 28,263
Revaluation adjustment EXLT kS (3,692) = = = = = (3,692)
Transfer upon completion 5 LA 5,107 1272 = = = (6,979) =
Transfer between categories /- = (126) 126 = = = =
Disposals & (2,290) (11,844) (2,028) (405) - - (16,567)
At 31st March 2007 1200743431 H 60,596 68,867 38,961 19,641 4,958 - 193,023
Accumulated depreciation ~ RFEH#
At Ist April 2006 J#20064E4H 1H - 42,686 23,356 6,669 2417 - 75,128
Exchange adjustment W i - 121 300 596 130 - 1,147
Charge for the year AEEYTE 1,485 14427 5,307 3,364 910 - 25,493
Transfer between categories /M5B - (93) 93 = = = =
Disposals & = (10,074) (1,462) (339) - - (11,875)
At 31st March 2007 J#20074E3A31H 1,485 47,067 27,594 10,290 3457 - 89,893
Net book value e e
At 31st March 2007 J#20074E3 5131 H 59,111 21,300 11,367 9,351 1,501 - 103,130
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VA5 A M

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17  #3%-Bi5 Kot i a0
(Continued)
Group (Continued) S (4)
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
Other improve-  computer  Plant and
properties ments  equipment  machinery Motor Construction
My AERE  BAKER FiF: vehicles  in progress Total
Wk %5 B R i VAN ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T
Cost or valuation A (Ll
At 1st April 2005 1#20054F4 1 1H 52,489 57,388 32,052 8,442 4,209 - 154,580
Exchange adjustment B A% - 135 35 - - = 170
Additions, at cost WE A 1,875 11,897 6,807 7914 213 5,097 33,803
Revaluation adjustment EXTE 5015 = = = = = 5,015
Transfer between categories 7M1/ Ef = = 9 9) = = =
Tl'ansfel' to non-current asset g%i%%ﬁﬁ# 'EH E Z
held for sale E R ) {3 (220) = = = = = (220)
Disposals e - (9,661) (3,359) 93) = = (13,113)
At 31st March 2006 J#20064F3 431 H 59,159 59,759 35,544 16,254 4422 5,097 180,235
Accumulated depreciation 2 f#f#
At It April 2005 20054 A 17 . 41927 21,130 3,949 1,602 - 68.608
Exchange adjustment T 5t % = 54 8 = = = 62
Charge for the year REFHE 1,121 9,171 4,950 2,199 815 - 18,856
Revaluation adjustment Bk (1,121) - - - - - (1,121)
Transfer between categories /M - = 1 (1) = = =
Disposals e = (8,466) (2,733) (18) - = (11,277)
At31st March 2006 2006437131 H S 4686 2,356 6,669 2417 . 75,128
Net book value e e
At 31st March 2006 1200643431 H 59,159 17,073 12,188 9,585 2,005 5,097 105,107
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S B e ik

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 3 W5 B flii )

(Continued)
Group (Continued) S (4)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as Rl B AR S A AT
follows:
Furniture and
Leasehold ~ fixtures and
Other improve-  computer  Plant and
properties menfs  equipment  machinery Motor ~ Construction
b MEBE GRKRR WF vehicles in progress Total
ik B[] BRE fl IR o
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKS'000 ~ HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T T T T T T T
At 31st March 2007 12007437310
At cost A = 68,367 38,961 19,641 4958 - 132,427
At professional valuation - 2007 Efh (i — 20074 59,111 = = = = = 59,111
59,111 68,367 38,961 19,641 4958 - 191,538
At 31st March 2006 1200643 A31H
At cost HAR (8 - 59,759 35,544 16,254 4422 5097 121,076
At professional valuation - 2006 3 fh i — 20065 59,159 = = = = = 59,159
59,159 59,759 35,544 16,254 4422 5,097 180,235
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VA5 A M

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 3 W5 B flii )

(Continued)
Group (Continued) S (4)
Net book value of other properties are analysed as follows: HoAbY 2 2 BRTENFE 2 AT R -
Group
E L
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
In Hong Kong, held on: TR WL T A
— Leases of over 50 years —S04 LA EFHAY 360 2,760
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10Z 504 H 4 310 530
670 3,290
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEATYE US55 07 e
— Leases of over 50 years —504ER) B 498 505
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10E 50414 57,943 55,364
58,441 55,869
59,111 59,159
Other properties were revalued on the basis of open market HAZE T 2007483 H 31 H e 8 7 224G
value at 31st March 2007 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an {H i Asset Appraisal Limited$# 2y B i {E 2
independent professional valuer. HEH fl o
The carrying amount of these revalued other properties would A G Al 7l 49y 2 DA AR (B 90 R T AT 8 T R
have been HK$60,576,000 (2006: HK$53,883,000) had they % W (E 5 48 7 R > R HC AR T (E B 5
been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 60,576,000% 7T (20064F::53,883,000% 7G) °

accumulated impairment losses.
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S B e ik

18 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 18 AL i B A S i BE
RIGHTS
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T-Wt Tt
Cost RAE
At 1st April R4H1H 14,026 15,656
Transfer to non-current HIEERRA RS
asset held for sale B & - (1,630)
Disposal e (5,600) =
Exchange difference [V 50, 7= %H 657 =
At 31st March K 1 L 9_ Z(_)_8_3_ ________1_4!-,_(?_2_6_
Accumulated amortisation BV
At 1st April W4H1H 1,191 1,347
Amortisation for the year 4 RS 169 182
Transfer to non-current asset R EY
held for sale FETE) & - (338)
Disposal HE (500) =
Exchange difference [FFE 52, 25 B 54 -
At 31st March w3Amtpo g4 1,191
Net book amount MR TV
At 31st March #W3H31H 8,169 12,835
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S B e ik

18 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 18
RIGHTS (Continued)
The net book value of leasehold land and land use rights are

analysed as follows:

FHLES 13 R - 3 0 R )

L 5 et e - b fe PR 2 R TR 9 (40 A 4
N

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#TT
In Hong Kong, held on: TR WL T A

Leases of over 50 years 504 LA B &) 978 6,094
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E 504FFH Ay 305 313
_________ L2533 B

Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEFWELUSMb L T 5 )7 A
Leases of over 50 years 504 LA B &) 791 804
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10ZF 504 FH 49 6,095 5,624
_________ 6,580 NN
8,169 12,835

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 KWBAGR#E
Company
AT

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#TT
Unlisted investments, at cost I TR $ AR E 298,887 298,887

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32

to the financial statements.

E BB A R R O B R M 32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 5 i o B ik
20 INVENTORIES — GROUP

21

22

At 31st March 2007, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to HK$1,381,000 (2006: HK$933,000).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s sales are on cash basis. Credit
sales are mainly for the Group’s wholesale customers with
terms of O to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

20 AR —4EM
200743 A31 B A B FESIIR 2 17
£ 41,381,000%5 75 (20064F:933,000457C) ©

21 MR MEA R A E MR - A
]
ORI S R TR R R

22 EGMEBUIRIE
A KRS B T AT AT o B
AR 2 B ST (5 B B0 %90
Elo

53 HEMCHE L2 GBS

Group
£ |

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#TT
0 — 30 days 0—30H 17,951 11,885
31 - 60 days 31—60H 933 -
61 — 90 days 61—90H 55 -
91 — 120 days 91—120H 168 6
Over 120 days 120 H 211 253
19,318 12,144

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

4 5y ME WSO TE 2 B L SELEL (B A A

ASEE 1) B oy M WACHR TEL A R v B DA 31 B

denominated in the following currencies: W BE A3
Group
L
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
THT TH#TT
HK$ VI 10,826 10,480
RMB NG 7,333 1,067
Other currencies HoAh B ¥ 1,159 597
19,318 12,144
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S5 R B ik
23 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR 23 FAPLE IR A
SALE
Group
#M
HK$’°000
T T
At 1st April 2005 R200544H1H =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment TR B W3 R A DA B
and leasehold land and land use rights FHEE b B A b A 1,512
Write-down to fair value (Note 9) O N TE (FFE9) (662)
At 31st March 2006 200643 431 H 850
Disposal & (850)
At 31st March 2007 200743 431 H -
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 RU5 BB MEA B
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables and B Ty B LA REAST HRIE A .55 B 5 B AT BRI »
their ageing analysis is as follows: FOARE AT AN -
Group
%M
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THs7T
0 — 30 days 0-30H 80,352 50,000
31 - 60 days 31-60H 33,702 29,486
61 — 90 days 61-90 H 5,591 8,066
91 — 120 days 91-120H 3,360 4,186
Over 120 days 120 H 397 722
123,402 92,460
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables B2 S B H A AN MR T 2 W T {1 BR8P
approximate their fair values. A o
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Y 5 e Bk
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

5 B A MEAT MR I (50)

AR 1) B2y D H At B A SR TR B v LA

payables are denominated in the following currencies: B LA
Group
£t
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’°000
T#x THTT
HK$ #0 164,244 127,159
RMB NG 40,687 24.860
US$ EYIN 20,481 8,055
Other currencies Hopth £ 1,892 1,567
227,304 161,641
25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE 25 JBeAA B JBe Ay ik A6
PREMIUM
(a) Share capital (@) A&
2007 2006
No. of shares HK$°000  No. of shares HK$’000
T4y ¥ H T#x [t & H THTT
Authorised: HE:
Ordinary shares of BIRTE(H0. 1Y 7T
HK$0.1 each 3 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: AT RS -
Ordinary shares of BIRTE(H0. 1Y 7T
HK$0.1 each Z B R
At 1st April W4A1H 487,943,850 48,794 485,443,850 48,544
Exercise of share options T fi B A 4,564,000 456 2,500,000 250
At 31st March W3H31H 492,507,850 49,250 487,943,850 48,794
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U 5 i o B ik
25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

PREMIUM (Continued)

25

JBEAS B JBe Ay it L (0)

(b) Share premium (b) JRtriafd

HK$°000

T HE 0

At 1st April 2005 A200544H1H 57,189
Exercise of share options AT i R 600

At 31st March 2006 JA20064-3 H31 H 57,789
Exercise of share options AT i AR 1,095

At 31st March 2007 200743 431 H 58,884

The Company has a share option scheme under which the
directors may, at their discretion, grant employees, including
any executive directors, of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries, options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the share

option scheme.

During the year, no such options were granted (2006: Nil).

Options to subscribe for 4,564,000 (2006: 2,500,000)
ordinary shares in the Company were exercised at a price of
HK$0.34 (2006: HK$0.34) per share during the year. The
premium of HK$1,095,000 (2006: HK$600,000) on the issue

of the new shares was credited to the share premium account.

At 31st March 2007, there were no share options outstanding.
At 31st March 2006, there were 4,564,000 share options
outstanding which are exercisable at HK$0.34 per share at

any time prior to 13th June 2010.

AN AT W IR R 8> BRI > 5 AT AR BE
S P R ) T T A R B e > B ) AR
A K SHAR T B A R 2 AR B (BLAR A
PUTIET) £52 0 B LAGB AR 22 m1 B Ay

AN LIRS M A B B HE (20064 < 4

AN > AT R 4,564,000 (20064F 2,500,000
Ji&) A8 R A 2 ik AR R B 0. 34 W5 5T
(20064F::0.34 45 T0) ZAEARHEAT (1 - 3547 4
JBEA3y 22 32 181,095,00095 T (20064 : 600,000
W T) BT AR fE -

A20074F3 A 31 H > 37 4 AT {r] B e 8 1) R A7
f#-5820064E3 H31 H > 34 4,564,00003 AT 7
20104F6 H 13 F HifAE AT RF ] L4120, 34 7 7T
A8 2 S ROHE 04 A A T (o
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B i
26 RESERVES 26 G
(@) Group (@ %H
Capital Revaluation  Exchange  Retained
reserve reserve Teserve  earnings Total
ARG AR BEXEHE  REEAN ki
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THT T#T THT T T
At Ist April 2006 200654 A 1H 135,713 6,158 1,606 465,104 608,581
Profit attributable to equity LGl A ON A
holders of the Company - - - 198,059 198,059
Exchange differences HE 0.2 - - 7,696 - 7,696
Deficit on revaluation of HolE E (g
other properties - (3423) - - (3,423)
Transfer of revaluation reserve i &—TEYIEHE M E ARt
to retained earning upon BERRERA
disposal of a property - (132) - 132 -
2005/06 final dividend paid B 2005064 B A MRS - - - (34,475) (34,475)
2006/07 interim dividend paid ~ E/FF2006/074F 5 R 1 £, - - - (34,476) (34,476)
At 31st March 2007 200743 31 H 135,713 2,603 9,302 594344 741,962
Representing: fi&:
Reserves it 135,713 2,603 9,302 540,168 687,786
Proposed dividend BRAE = = = 54,176 54,176
At 31st March 2007 200743 31 H 135,713 2,603 9,302 594344 741,962
Asat Ist April 2005 200544 1 135,713 - 069) 4088 5830
Profit attributable to equity AN AR R A MBI
holders of the Company - - - 95,695 95,695
Exchange differences I 5t 24 = = 1,875 = 1875
Surplus on revaluation of R B
other properties - 6,158 - - 6,158
2004/05 final dividend paid B 12004/054 5 A BIRLE. - - - (38,836) (38,836)
2005/06 interim dividend paid ~ E/FF2005/064F 5 1 £, - - - (14,638) (14,638)
At31st March 2006 R2006E331H 135,713 6,158 1606 465104 608,581
Representing: fi&:
Reserves ikt 135,713 6,158 1,606 430,948 574,425
Proposed dividend BRAE = = = 34,156 34,156
At31st March 2006 20063 31H 135,713 6,158 1606 465104 608,581
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S5 R e W i
26 RESERVES (Continued) 26 Gl @0
(b) Company ® A
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
B REHA M
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#ET T#ET T#ET

At st April 2006 200654 H 1H 298,687 67,888 366,575

Profit for the year B ik ) - 59,951 59,951

2005/06 final dividend paid £ £2005/064F 1 A 5L - (34,475) (34,475)
2006/07 interim dividend paid ~ E.12006/074: A HA ik & - (34,476) (34,476)
At 31st March 2007 200743 H31H 298,687 58,888 357,575

Representing: Rk

Reserves ffti 298,687 4,712 303,399

Proposed dividend fEEIR R - 54,176 54,176

At 31st March 2007 200742331 H 298,687 58,888 357,575

At st April 2005 A20054E4 7 1H 298,687 61,666 360,353

Profit for the year B ik ) - 59,696 59,696

2004/05 final dividend paid £ £12004/05 A S - (38,836) (38.836)
2005/06 interim dividend paid ~ E.4$2005/064F H #H1 /i & - (14,638) (14,638)
At 31st March 2006 #20064E3 431 H 298,687 67,888 366,575

Representing: f:

Reserves ffti 298,687 33,732 332,419
Proposed dividend fEEIR B - 34,156 34,156
At 31st March 2006 #20064E3 431 H 298,687 67,888 366,575
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S B e ik

26 RESERVES (Continued) 26 filifli 0
(c)  The contributed surplus of the Company represents (c) ARONT) 2 R R AR AN R Jy 384
the difference between the nominal value of the Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited
shares issued by the Company in exchange for all the A AT A R AT By 2 T
issued ordinary shares of Luk Fook Investment {8 BLJA 1997457 /3 w) T Wi i A B
(B.V.I) Limited and the value of net assets of the Rt g A W 22 e VRE T A 2 2 o
underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company in RIEAFEE 198 1 FAFE (BE
1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as F1) o BB BRI IR B T A5 B A HE
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to AR FAE BB R IR AT IR AR > b
the shareholders, provided that the Company would, ZHREIA BB A IR G 1A A SR 1R
after the payment of dividends out of the contributed HE IR AN A 2 B E A S BLE
surplus, be able to pay its liabilities as they become AR D A HARHS  H e BT AR
due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets B H IR At PR 2 A o JA A S T
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its BRI BT A B S R 40
liabilities, its issued share capital and its share BUREA B E A 7 2 o
premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus
is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.
27 DEFERRED TAXATION 27 EEBUH
Group
%M
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#L THs7T
At 1st April R4H1H 5,634 4,435
Credited to the income statement (Note 11) wt AR (Ms511) 1,705 1,199
At 31st March JA3H31H 7,339 5,634
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S B e ik

B HEBEIHE (1)
SEAEBLIE Z S T B -

27 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 27

Deferred taxation is provided in respect of:

Unrealised profit on

Tax depreciation closing inventories

allowances WA RZ Total
BUB T 5 3l RSB A M
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T#o Tl T T T
At Ist April B4A1H 2,066 1,359 3,568 3,076 5,634 4,435
Credited to the FIABRGER
income statement 202 707 1,503 492 1,705 1,199
At 31st March #3H31H 2,268 2,066 5,071 3,568 7,339 5,634
Representing: ok
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THsIT
Deferred tax assets PEFERL TE 7,468 6,257
Deferred tax liabilities B HIE ol T L (129) (623)
7,339 5,634

On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “new CIT Law”). The new CIT Law
changes the corporate income tax rate for domestic
enterprises from 33% to 25% and foreign invested enterprises
from the range between 5% and 24% to 25% with effect from
1st January 2008. The new CIT Law also provides for
preferential tax rates, tax incentives for prescribed industries
and activities, grandfathering provisions as well as
determination of taxable profit. As at the date that these
financial statements were approved for issue, detailed
measures concerning these items have yet to be issued by the
State Council. Consequently, the Group is not in a position to
assess the impact, if any, on the carrying value of deferred
tax assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2007. The Group
will evaluate the impact as more detailed regulations are

announced.

R200743 A 16 H > 2 AN RAE K EER
T A RGBSR AT RIS ([
EF AR ]) <h200841 A 1 H BILGHATH
R U Y RS AR~ G MO AN HE &= i
) W A 2P S BB R AL B AT Y
33% (5% %24%) 0% F525% < i A>2E Fr iRl
IRTRELE T8 B R B 2 A B
Aot ST 8 B » G 52 v R R Akl 1) SRR Mk
DA % JRE A7 P P55 10 e A o A AN A TS SR 3R bk
HEAET) 2 B B B i A 8 47 B it A ) o R
1> A 2 ) o 4 A BRSSPI B 15 B e
HALE 71200743 A 31 H Z IR PGB &
JEE AT SIE T 500 R {2 P U T {1 A ) 28 o
AR A Ll ELB AR G RE A 4% > AR
ST A5 125 3 A 4R ] ) 2 o
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S B e ik

28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

28 HIRBAREE

STATEMENT
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated I8 i i A1 B L 7 A 2 B 4 A 2 R
from operations: mr
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THs7T
Profit before taxation I3 6 il ¥ A1) 234,688 112,420
Amortisation of leasehold land T b % - b A
and land use rights B 169 182
Depreciation of property, W R BT ey
plant and equipment 25,493 18,856
Loss on disposal of other property, A oAb 2 R K
plant and equipment B4 i 2,124 1,572
Interest income B A (2,438) (835)
Interest expense FIE B 179 1,309
Provision for permanent impairment of A A R R KA
available-for-sale financial asset RIS - 1,042
Gain on disposal of a property HE—IHYEZ Ias (10,610) =
Deficit on revaluation Ho At )3 2 B A g &l
of other properties 269 22
Write-down of non-current asset MO A L 2 R B
held for sale to fair value HEZEATHE - 662
Operating profit before working EEEREHHTZ
capital changes KB e F 249,874 135,230
Increase in rental deposits FH A2 4 38 T (2,340) (3,885)
Increase in inventories et gy (139,868) (67,158)
Increase in trade and other B 5 B HA FE YR IE
receivables, deposits and 4 T AT HRIE
prepayments Hm (19,366) (1,161)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R H AR HRIE
payables Hm 65,663 40,148
Net cash generated from operations B AR 153,963 103,174
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S B e ik

29 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 29 BUTHIBRKBLE
Group Company
£ | A
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
SRILIN Tt SRLIN Tt
Denominated in: FHE R
HKS$ W0 135,991 70,916 411 503
RMB NG 25,604 32,423 - -
Other currencies HoAh & 12,939 5,399 624 624
174,534 108,738 1,035 1,127

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The conversion of the RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC Government.

SRATAF AL 4 H SRAT I B A7 30N 2 e A
Bo N RMEAEER S S SN2 oh BB 9
i 2 SN R B B 2 B R

30 COMMITMENTS - GROUP 30 FRiE— M
(a) Capital commitments (@) HAKNE
Group
L]
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
Contracted but not provided for CRTAMERAE s 2
Property, plant and equipment i B A 7,257 8,580
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S B e ik

30 COMMITMENTS - GROUP (Continued) 30 7RIE —SEE @)
(b) Commitments under operating leases b) BEMERE
At 31st March 2007, the Group had future aggregate R20074F3 A31 H » A4 B 5k T Hh K&
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable MEFRIEAS AT 8 2 K A0 S5 17
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as TR AR AT 2 F AT B A K AR A G
follows: T
Group
M
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L THs7T
Not later than one year —4EN 94,071 87,315
Later than one year and —4ERL FEAB A AR
not later than five years 75,802 97,073
169,873 184,388
The actual payments in respect of certain operating # T RBTHA B AT RT3 4% 30T
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum e R AR RS BRLA A A I i i 6 5 4
commitments as noted above and the amounts SO LU E R R A
determined based on a percentage of the sales of the Ho
related outlets.
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 HREALZRY
The Company is controlled by Luk Fook (Control) Limited AN R Z RN B By 7S AR (HER) A BRAF
(“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the British (AR ]) - 5% Al R L A B
Virgin Islands, which directly owns 47.08% of the AT B AR AN W] 47.08 % B o Fe
Company’s shares. The remaining shares of the Company are ERIRA 4 R A o
widely held.
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary BRI R AR B R ERFIRGE (M5
beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The itl) 2 BMEZ f N MR ST A AR R T
Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share TR BRA Al 2R B A T 2 Bt A N -
capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith HEROAE R AT PR Al B i A 7 pa e
Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 35.26% 35.26% B0y o 7S AR HE AR A 43 HICHE
of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares He

of Luk Fook Control are widely held.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

31

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Set out below are the significant related party transactions
during the year in addition to the related party information

shown elsewhere in the financial statements.

(a) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr. WONG Kwai Sang, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of
the Group for a period of 1 year (2006: 1 year),
expiring on 31st December 2007. During the year
ended 31st March 2007, rental payable to Mr. WONG
Kwai Sang amounted to HK$1,860,000 (2006:
HK$1,800,000).

(b) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service
contract (“Service Contract”) with Miss YEUNG Po
Ling, Pauline and Topone Investments Limited
(“Topone™) for a period of 1 year (2006: 1 year)
expiring on 31st March 2007. Pursuant to the Service
Contract, Topone agreed to make available Miss
Yeung’s exclusive services for the promotion of the
products and services of the Group in consideration
of an annual fee of HK$403,000 (2006:
HK$395,000).

Both Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Miss YEUNG Po
Ling, Pauline are directors of the Company and have
beneficial interests in the Company.

LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED #&4EH (FFs) 4 R A+

31

HREA L2525 @)

A > BRI RS SR AN 0 P i B
FRON R BN L 22 5 #A T -

()

(b)

AN Tl — R mIBL AR e A
Z B EAE A e A RT L E T R
N SEFH T A 4 A 2 T Al
& B4 (20064F 1 14E) > 4§k
20074F12 A 31 H J&i - i ZE 2007 4F
3H31H IL4FE A FRE A SetE 2
4 £51,860,000% 50 (2006 4F:
1,800,000%57T) ©

AN E) — R B A B B E F /N
RBE—HERRAF ([F—1) 7T
SSRGS A H (TIREA ) > B
4F (20064F : 14F) > jA20074E3 H31H
e < AR RS & 40> Fo— A = /)
U 17] A 42 [ (1A SR RS > DA R
7 45 T 1) 7 i RS B B A
403,000# 7T (20064F 395,000
JG) °

HR A MR/ NA R AL
G & 9 /NI E N E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y 5 e Bk
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31
(Continued)

(c) Key management compensation

AL 2R Y @)
(c) FEHFIIGHE

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#t THIT
Directors’ fees e 933 921
Salaries, allowances and g B KB 5
benefits-in-kind 17,099 13,343
Performance and discretionary R R WE I
bonuses fEAL 6,073 2,875
Contributions to pension plan XN B S 300 319
Total payable and expensed in A T 3% v A T B
the financial statements BH < 4R 24,405 17,458
Benefit from exercise of A7 o8 B A 2 Wi 25
share options 3,286 3,650
27,691 21,108
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e ik

32 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32 WHEA AR
At 31st March 2007, the Company had the following A20074E3 H 31 H » A ) 2 322 [t /A 7
principal subsidiaries: I
Particulars of Percentage of

Place of issued share attributable

incorporation/ capital/ interest held

establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities

i3} AV A, 7 5 i A

JBL H il A oA i T4 b F2EH

2007 2006

Interests held directly:

IERESERCL R
Luk Fook Investment BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
(B.V.L) Limited R A 2t 2T PR
i
Interests held indirectly:
SRR Sk
China Gems Laboratory Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Authentication of
Limited i 28T gemstones
thEE TR BT E 0 BEE
HRAT
Great Cyber Investment Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding
Limited il 100 7T LB
A AR 7
Ice Collection (International) ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Limited ik 100% 7T jewellery products
WK% (BIF) A RAF 78 KA T
FEEY
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding,
e B A 8,000,000 G and provision of
REES software development
and services
relating to internet
BB WA B
A 2 LT A AT B R
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Investment holding,
AR (F) HRAH i 100770 and provision of

software development
and services relating
to internet
BRI WA B R
8 2 LT A A B R
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Particulars of

Percentage of

SV e B ik
32 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32 HHEA AN @)
(Continued)

Place of issued share attributable
incorporation/ capital/ interest held
establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(i3} A A, 7 5 i A
JBL L il A oA [ EYipi F2EH
2007 2006
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
PR i (70
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100 Gold bullion trading
Limited il 14,000,000 7 HEHH
ANEEIEARA R
Luk Fook Holdings Company ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
Limited i 28T services to group
AN E AR companies and
wholesale distribution
of gold and
jewellery products
FRAE IR T
VGV E iR gig
TR 42
Luk Fook Jewellery & Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (HK) i 100 7T jewellery products
Co., Limited HEEMERTE
AERE AT (FH) ES
HRAH
Luk Fook Jewellery & Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Macao) i 1,000,000 475 jewellery products
Company Limited in Macau
AERE AT (R QLA S8 E
HRAT BIRE 24 5
Luk Fook Jewellery & Canada CAS$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Canada) mEx 100/M&XTT jewellery products
Limited in Canada
NEHRE AT (MR QI ENE S7RE
HRAH A i A T
Max Forum Development Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding
Limited i 1007 7T RRER/ES
it = B RA R
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Bob a3 2> vl kA ()

32 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32

(Continued)

Particulars of

Percentage of

Place of issued share attributable

incorporation/ capital/ interest held

establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities

R Ve Lt 28] ' 4 7 5 b A

JB L H ik A o A [ EYipi F2EH

2007 2006
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
MR ()
Maxigood Enterprises Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing and
Limited ik 3,000,000% G wholesale distribution
R SEA PR A F of jewellery products
R KA 6
TREE
Success Era Investments Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 51 51 Sales of electroplated
Limited i 3,000,000% 7C gold ornament
TR G R S T S i
ANEKRE (FY) HRAR - PRC HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing,

H 15,000,000 G wholesale, retailing
of gold and
jewellery products
and related
consultancy
services in the PRC

T B e S B
B REEEE R
TREEE i K AR B
AR
R o o A PR ) PRC HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding
H 35,000,000% 7T in the PRC
JURCERRER7ES
+ The subsidiaries were established as wholly foreign-owned + %55 BB O m) A rh B SL 2 AN E A
enterprises in the PRC. E
Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate B GBS bl i A R 3 B R v
principally in Hong Kong. KB T -

ERBBNZ AN W 2 7)) E R A
L SN2 s S
THEZ EZE Sl > SR AULAL B
NAEIZFEE G S BRI R TR -

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
e Pl

MANUFACTURE & WHOLESALE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery Manufacturing (Panyu) Company Limited

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

Success Era Investments Limited

Luk Fook Corporate Gift (International) Limited
Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited

PRC BUSINESS

RETAIL

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Co., Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Macao) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited

Ice Collection (International) Limited

FINANCE

Luk Fook Finance Limited

AUTHENTICATION

China Gems Laboratory Limited

PORTAL BUSINESS

Jewellworld.com Limited
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DISTRIBUTION OF LUK FOOK LICENSEE SHOPS

IN THE PRC
18] P9 N 1 o e i A

THE PRC
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S RETAIL CHAIN

AR B 2 Z A Hhi

LUK FOOK JEWELLERY  # %k £
HONG KONG 7#

1. Shop No. 14-17, G/F, 281 King’s Road, North Point, H.K.
Frvs b A 5r 2 3E 281 553 N 14- 175540

2. G/F, Ming Yuen Centre, 400-404 King’s Road, North Point, H.K.
Frvts b fA 55 23 400-404 55 A 50 O3 R

3. Shop C, G/F, 479 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, H.K.
T S S 2 R 479 5E R C A

4. Shop B & C, G/F, Radio City, 505 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay,

HK.
T Y SIS T 2 U 50595 T 30t T B K C
5. Shop A-B, G/F., Kin Tak Fung Comm. Bldg., 467-473 Hennessy
Road, Causeway Bay, H.K.
T USSP T 2 R 467-473 5 S L p 36K JB Mt T A-B A
6. Shop B, G/F., Manson House, 74-78 Nathan Road, T.S.T., Kln.
JUHE R Vb W S S0 74-78 55 SCHE K J5 . T B Al
7. Shop G2, G/F, Hanford House, 221B-E Nathan Rd, Kln.
JURESHIEUE22 1 B-E S AR P 3K G2 4
8. G/F, 315 Nathan Rd., Kln.
JUREBUH3 1555 T
9. GJF, 687-689 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kln.
JURERE A I ZUE 687-689 98
10. G1-G2, G/F, Sun Hing Building, 603, 603A Nathan Road, KIn.
JUHETRSAAEG03 ~ 603ASEHT A HG1-G24

11. Shop B, G/F, Rex House, 648 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kln.
JUBERE A1 S B0OE 648 SR 5 - 2R BT H T B #f

12. Shop G1-G2 and G13, G/F, Nathan Centre, 580G-K Nathan Road,
Mongkok, Kln.
JURERE A T B0E S80G-K I ZU P Lot T G1-G2 X G134

13. Shop 5B, G/F., Good Hope Bldg., 612-618 Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, Kln. (To be opened)
JURERE F I UE 612-6 1 85 IF B A K b SBUEER (BIAFHH )

14. A-C, G/F, 53 Fung Tak Road, Fung Wong New Village,
Wong Tai Sin, Kln.
JURE S AL BT A SRR S35EA-CHl

15. G/F, 77-79 Mut Wah Street, Kwun Tong, Kln.
IUHEBLYE AT T7-7950 L T

16. Shop F4, Telford Plaza, Phase 1, Kowloon Bay, Kln.
JURE U BE BT B 35 58 L P4 3

17. GJ/F, Shop 6, Emperor Plaza 1, 55 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan,
N.T.
W LSS R TR S RS S 65k Al

18. G/F, 98 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan, N.T.
W AL 98 ML T

19. Shop 46A, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin, N.T.
WU RS = 46 AR

20. Shop no. 317, L3 New Town Plaza, 18 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin,
N.T.
TP IE A L SR AR T I 5 343 1 7 9

21. Shop 12, KCRC Shatin Station, N.T.
R L 12598 6

22. Shop 1141, L1, Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Tuen Mun, N.T.
B T P T ROS AR U 1R 1141588

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 4E#}

23. Shop 48, L1, Tuen Mun Town Plaza II,
3 Tuen Lung Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories

TSR P T R A 3 S Y T R A 20 1 4B B B

24. Shop No. 235-237, Level 2, No. 39 Lung Sum Avenue,
Landmark North, Sheung Shui, N.T.
B FKREBR #3998 K 5212352375k 4

25. GJF, 155 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
B ITHIE LA 15598
26. Shop 6W548, Hong Kong International Airport, Chek Lap Kok,

N.T.
T IR R U L PR 6 W S48 B Al

MACAU %"
1. No. 325 Avenida Almeida Ribeiro, Macau
T3 5 325 5 T

2. Avenida Do Infante D. Henrique No. 12-18, Macau
VL 4B D0 TH G B4R 5% S B R G B 12 B 1858

3. The Grand Canal Shoppes, Shop No. 2018
The Ventetian Macao-Resort-Hotel
Estrada da Baia de N. Senhora da Esperangs, s/n,
The Cotal Strip, Taipa, Macau (To be opened)
P AT B Ok 4 K A SR A B B K RS
TR e 0 A — BEARA — 304 1
I ) 020 18556l (RIAS FE)

CANADA &k

1. Unit 1010, Aberdeen Centre, 4151 Hazelbridge Way, Richmond,
British Columbia, V6X 3L7, Canada
TR B BA SOV 2R B 415 LR RFAR DT 101048

USA H]

1. Suite 1205, Oakridge Mall, 925 Blossom Hill Road, San Jose,
CA9512-1294, USA

2. Store A, 185 Canal Street, New York, NY 10013, USA (To be opened)
(5 E )

THE PRC 1}

1. Shop C8909, Departure Hall, 3/F., Main Terminal,
Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport, Hua Du District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC
o R i R O T 0 D 1 22 R 355 il M A =
BEHEC8909 5% fif
2. 1/F, Phase 1, New World Shopping Mall, 3 Chong Wen Men Da Jie,
Beijing, the PRC
e B b 5 5 S0 P R A 3 AL ORI R 5 LW LU
3. Shop No. 119, Sun Dong An Shopping Mall, 138 Wang Fu Jing
Street Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
o I b T SR R SRR 1 38 ST SR 4 B L 1 1 1995
4. 1/F, Xidan Shopping Mall, 120 Xidan North Street, Xichen District,
Beijing, the PRC
e B b T PG ok LR Y UK 120 5% 7Y B G —
5. 2/F., Lanzhou New World Jiang Mei Department Store,
89 Zhang Ye Road, Chengguan District, Lanzhou City, Gansu
Province, the PRC
e R R T R e R A S 8 O 5 B MM HHE SRV 3R ok

ICE g.
HONG KONG %

1. Shop No. 267, Level 2, No. 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Landmark
North, Sheung Shui, N.T.
A EOKHESR % 3958 EK B2 2679 i
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25th Floor, BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2308 1218 Fax: (852) 2374 1696
WebSite: www.lukfook.com.hk E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk
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